m Public Health
4 Agency

PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015



PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY
ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Laid before the Northern Ireland Assembly
under Schedule 1, para 17(5) of the Reform Act tbe Regional Agency, by the
Department of Health, Social Services and Publicf&a.
On 01 July 2015



© Public Health Agency copyright 2015

You may re-use this information (excluding loga®ef of charge in any format or medium, under the
terms of the Open Government Licence. To viewltbence, visit
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-goveemtilicenceor email:
psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk

Where we have identified any third party copyrigtibrmation you will need to obtain permission
from the copyright holders concerned.

Any enquiries regarding this document should be seuns at:
Public Health Agency
12/22 Linenhall Street

Belfast
BT2 8BS

This publication is also available for downloadnfrour website at:
www.publichealth.hscni.net

ISBN: 9781874602781



Contents

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015..ccccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee, 2
CRAIFS STAEMENL. ... e e e ettt e e e e e e e eene it eeeeeeaaa e e eeesestaaaaeeaenes 5
Chief EXECULIVE'S STALEMENT ... ...uuiiii ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eennareeeseann e e e aeaeeaeeeeeees 7
Director’'s Report: PUublic Health...........o e 10
Director’'s Report: Nursing And Allied Health Pro$sns.........cccccoeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e e 16
(D[ g=Toa (o] SR =T 0T @] o1=] =1 1o 1S 21
The Centre For Connected Health And Social Car@........ccoooeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiei e 27
ManagemeNnt COMMENTANY .......coiiiiii e eeeeim e e et e e e e et e e e e eese s aeaeeeeeeesena e e e eeesrnnnaaeeas 29
The Continuing Work Of The Public Health AQENCYaaa....ccovviiiiiiiiiccie e 35
REMUNEIAtION REPOIT .. ..ot e+ttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesaassbann e e e e eeeas 36
Report From The Governance And Audit COMMILtEE.........coeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 40
o oA =T = 1 o U 42
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015 ....uciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e e e 8 4
0 1= .Y T o PRSPPI 49
Statement Of Accounting Officer Responsibilities...............uiiiiiiiiii e 50
Certificates Of The Director Of Finance, ChairmamdAChief Executive................ccooeeevvv i D1
Certificate and Report Of The Comptroller and AadiGeneral to the NI Assembly................ 2.5
GOVEINANCE STALEIMENT .....uiiitiiiiiti e ot et e e e et e e e eaa e e e ea e e e e s eesee et e e eesaeeeenneeeennneeees 54
Statement Of Comprehensive Net Expenditure ForYidas Ended 31 March 2015................ 67
Statement Of Financial Position As At 31 March 2015............coo i, 68
Statement Of Cash Flows For The Year Ended 31 M20&% ................cocovviiiiiiiinnnnn. 69
Statement Of Changes In Taxpayers’ Equity For Tear\ended 31 March 2015...................70
Notes To The Accounts For The Year Ended 31 MaBdb2............eueiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieees e e 71



PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY
ANNUAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015



PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY
ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
Getting in touch

Public Health Agency

Headquarters

4th floor

12-22 Linenhall Street

Belfast

BT2 8BS

Tel: 0300 555 0114 (Local call rate and includethwiiinclusive call packages)

Northern Office

County Hall

182 Galgorm Road

Ballymena

BT42 1QB

Tel: 0300 555 0114 (Local call rate and includethimiinclusive call packages)

Southern Office

Tower Hill

Armagh

BT61 9DR

Tel: 0300 555 0114 (Local call rate and includethimiinclusive call packages)

Western Office

Gransha Park House

15 Gransha Park
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Tel: 0300 555 0114 (Local call rate and includethimiinclusive call packages)

Normal business hours:
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Board
The board of the Public Health Agency (PHA) meeg¢gjdiently throughout the year and members
of the public may attend these meetings. The daitees and locations of these meetings are
advertised in advance in the press and on our owaporate website atww.publichealth.hscni.net
Using this report
This report reflects progress by the PHA in 2014#i5delivering its corporate priorities and
highlights examples of work undertaken to meet tidugets as detailed in the PHA’s annual
business plan. It shows how this work has contethuto meeting our wider objectives and
fulfilling our statutory functions.

The full accounts of the PHA are contained withiis tombined document.

For more detailed information on our work, pleasit wur corporate website at
www.publichealth.hscni.net

Other formats

Copies of this report may be produced in altermaformats upon request. A PDF file of this
document is also available to download fremw.publichealth.hscni.net
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CHAIR’S STATEMENT

| would firstly like to thank and acknowledge thenk and dedication of my predecessors, Mary
McMahon, who was Chair of the Agency since its ptmn in 2009, and Julie Erskine, who was
Acting Chair from December 2014 until the end ofy\N2®15.

Mary not only undertook extensive work covering aBpects of the PHA’s remit, building
important relationships and meeting many of theugsoand organisations the PHA supports, but
also made a considerable contribution to shapiadPtiA’s vision and goals.

Mary brought leadership to all aspects of the PHyartd’s work and her unstinting commitment
ensured the PHA'’s goal to improve the health aniibesg of our local population was always her
top priority. We wish her well in her new endeawur

A member of the PHA board since April 2009 and Clohithe Governance and Audit Committee
to June 2014, Julie ensured the seamless contioiustgrvice of the board after Mary’s departure.

As interim Chair, Julie brought a focus to ensurihgt work on developing our future corporate
priorities included extensive engagement with aen@hge of people and partners. This will prove
a sound foundation for completing this work in ylear ahead.

During the last year a significant milestone waached within public health in Northern Ireland
with the launch of the new ten-year stratdggking Life Better. This important strategy will
further help to focus our efforts to bring real @adgible improvements to health and wellbeing in
Northern Ireland.

The year under review has seen progress, as wslras challenges, across our work to protect
health; improve health and wellbeing; improve dyadind safety of health and social care services;
as well as to increase early detection of iliness.

Central to all of this is the principle of partneis working with individuals, communities and an
array of key public, private and voluntary orgatimas and interests. We thank them all,
irrespective of size and remit. As an Agency we aommitted to continuing to work
collaboratively to achieve all our common goals.

This is particularly relevant as we enter a new fergpublic services, not least with the 11 new
councils coming into being on 01 April 2015 anditgkon new powers such as community
planning. We look forward to forging closer retais with the new councils over the coming years
and to addressing the challenges that we share.

Ensuring that our population has the right inforeratand wherewithal to maximise its health,

wellbeing and full potential remains a critical éh©f our work. To underpin this, we continued to

use available evidence and evaluation to identdw rand effective interventions to address the
causes of poor health and wellbeing — particularlthe areas of obesity, smoking, alcohol misuse
and mental health.

Our immunisation and screening programmes contitoielévelop in the course of the year and the
PHA also successfully activated emergency prepassdprocedures in response to suspected cases
of Ebola. Much effort has been expended withinRkA and with our wider stakeholders to plan
and prepare for such outbreaks and threats.
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Important work to bring about positive change amgbrioved quality in the delivery of services
within health and social care was also undertakeough a range of initiatives including ‘10,000
Voices’ which actively encouraged service users @aitents’ to recount their experiences. These
narratives will translate into tangible improvensem how we provide services in the near future.

The remainder of this Annual Report highlights iorendetail the breadth of work undertaken by
the PHA over the last year.

As we look forward to the year ahead we are mindiuthe challenges the Northern Ireland
Executive must address in terms of public finanesswell as the need in these difficult
circumstances to maintain focus on improving oyylation’s health.

Early in the coming year, we will sadly lose thepertise and insight of two Non-Executive Board
members who have served with PHA since its incapfiy Jeremy Harbison and Miriam Karp. On
behalf of the PHA board and all staff | would like thank them both for their invaluable
contribution and commitment over the past six years

And to our current board and our dedicated andegsibnal staff, without whom our work would
not take place, | would like to assure them of noynmitment, support and encouragement in
continuing to tackle the root causes of poor heatith wellbeing and to giving every member of our
society the best opportunity to live a healthy.life

B sl

Andrew Dougal
Chair

tm[o@[rvf

Date
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
The last year has been an extremely busy and eN@etfiod for public health in Northern Ireland.

Under the Programme for Government we welcomed tiaddi financial resources -
acknowledging the importance of our work in imprayhealth and wellbeing and in supporting the
Executive’s priority of tackling deprivation and\soty.

Important support and focus in helping all sectionderstand their important contribution to public
health came during the year in the form of the ¢tdwaof the much-anticipated 10-year public health
strategic framework Making Life Better

As designated lead agency for the implementatiothisfnew whole-system framework for public
health we convened a new Regional Project Boardconeng representation from all relevant
statutory agencies, local government, and the camtgjwoluntary and private sectors.

The health and social care sector alone cannoletdick root causes of poor health and wellbeing
and inequalities in health. This important colletiton and partnership approach recognises that
many factors can affect an individual’s health and collective aim and renewed focus is to ensure
the creation of the right conditions for individsadnd communities to take control of their own
lives and ultimately achieve better health and meetig and reduce health inequalities.

We also welcome increased collaboration opportesitiom April 2015 when the 11 new Councils
came into being and assumed the lead for the coitynpianning process. We look forward to
working in partnership with them all to help infhee how and where services are provided and to
working together towards our common goals.

During the year we welcomed the introduction of lseyvices such as the new digital screening
units for the diabetic retinopathy screening pragre and the launch of a new service to identify
people at risk from Familial Hypercholesterolaenfidd), a symptomless genetic disorder that
increases a person’s chance of early heart dissadepremature death, developed and funded
through a partnership between Health and Sociad @ad Northern Ireland Chest Heart and Stroke.

We also launched seven new mobile breast screemiitg; which mark the start of a new era for
breast screening in Northern Ireland and increlasgotential of bringing the service closer to more
communities and making it more accessible to women.

Important inter-Departmental work continued on m#énoyts, notably the ‘Maximising Access in
Rural Areas’(MARA) project, funded by the Departrheh Agriculture and Rural Development
and led by the PHA, which made significant impaatg the year, exceeding its original targets.

During the year we supported a huge array of coniiywand voluntary sector initiatives and
programmes ranging from ‘Community Relations Weekhd the ‘Networks Involving
Communities’ annual event to the North Down ‘Invesntt in Health Award’ and Ballymena’s new
‘One Stop Shop’ for young people aged 11-25 yeditsis grass-roots level work is so important
and we are extremely proud of all the individuaidg groups involved as well as our own staff who
are making such a difference.

In March, the PHA launched a set of Personal andi®involvement (PPI) Standards and key
performance indicators which put in place a setstaindards for engagement between people
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working within Health and Social Care (HSC) andvemr users, carers and members of the public.
We will continue to embed PPI during 2015/16 byrmpoting the standards to create a truly
person-centred approach.

During 2014/15, the PHA published the first AnnQalality Report with the HSCB to highlight the
work completed in improving the quality of healtidasocial care services in Northern Ireland. The
report was published upon the recommendation ofitQu020, a strategic framework and plan of
action that aims to protect and improve qualityHealth and Social Care and whose strategy
defines the three core elements of quality as wa##fectiveness, and patient and client focus. We
are committed to continuing to implement Quality2@0vhich will result in further improvements
in the care patients receive and the environmaift\work in.

eHealth plays a significant role in supporting desto services detailed in all the major, current
strategies and initiatives includir@quality 2020 Making Life Betterand Transforming Your Care
The PHA's Centre for Connected Health and SociateCaplays a leading role in eHealth
development, working closely with the HSCB, DHSSB& others and contributing to the
development of theHealth and care strategy for Northern Irelamghich has just completed its
public consultation.

We look forward to the roll out of the strategy aseking how technology will further change how
the HSC works, facilitating better communicatiord anformation flows and delivering services to
improve care and wellbeing.

Our important health protection work continued atmg year wasn’'t without its need for
implementation of emergency planning with the sasftd management of two suspected cases of
Ebola and all the leadership that goes with susbemario. | commend all those involved in every
aspect of this work, all of which was successfaltyioned at very short notice.

The PHA’s HSC Research and Development (R&D) Donstontinued to support research during
the year that provides high quality evidence torionp care for patients, clients and the general
population. It also continued to create opportasifor researchers to compete for research funding
on a wider UK or international basis.

Our mass-media public information campaign actieitytinued to target the population during the
year through use of TV, radio and outdoor advergsand, increasingly, through social media and
targeted online advertising. During the year wdartook high profile multi-channel campaigns on
obesity, bowel cancer screening, smoking, mentaltineorgan donation, flu and the more recent
cancer awareness campaign.

Special mention should go to the HSCB/PHA MediciMemagement Dietitian (MMD) Initiative
for winning the Leckey award at the inaugural Adsiag Healthcare Awards NI and to the
Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGB&T) Heahd Social Care Staff Forum which won
the Social Partnership Forum award for partnerstopking with trades unions at the UK-wide
Healthcare People Management Association award®altid protection colleagues were also
commended for their work in the Hep B and C Netwatrkhe Quality in Care awards.

As Chair of the Northern Ireland Committee for QrgBonation and Transplantation | must
commend the excellent work that has been donetbeeyear within the health services and by all
of the other organisations involved in promotinganr donation and transplantation. As a result,
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we have seen an increase in support for organ idonain increase in awareness of the organ donor
register and the number of people expressing a teibecome an organ donor.

As we begin a new financial year we are turning thaughts to our new corporate strategy for
2016-2020 and beginning the process of developingpoiorities for the next five years and
considering what we can do to bring about improvema the health and wellbeing of the
population. We are undertaking internal and exteeamgagement with our key stakeholders and
welcome any comments that will help shape the agémdthe PHA in the coming years.

We are also entering a very challenging periodvieaitiook forward to the year ahead and, with
such a dedicated and professional staff and beadre prepared to meet the challenges head on
and with confidence. | would like to thank and amkfedge each and every one of our staff and
board for their professionalism, dedication and comment.

Dr Eddie Rooney
Chief Executive

)

O hera 2O S
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Date
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT: PUBLIC HEALTH

During 2014/15, the Public Health Directorate conéid to address the main public health
challenges in Northern Ireland. The work of thélRuHealth Directorate covers four key areas:

* Health Protection;

» Health and Social Wellbeing Improvement;
» Service Development and Screening; and
 HSC Research and Development.

The Northern Ireland Executive’s new overarchimgitsgic framework for public healthaking
Life Betterwas launched in June 2014. In line with thistetyg, the Public Health Directorate
continued to work to protect and improve the heahtl social wellbeing of the people of Northern
Ireland through numerous health programmes anidtings.

Some of the key areas of work undertaken duringd2@lincluded the development of the HSC
web portal in partnership with the HSCB and thedPaiClient Council.

This project will create a technical platform thgbunidirect to provide comprehensive information
about health and social care services and diseasagement to professionals and the public in
Northern Ireland.

This information will help people to manage thewrohealth and wellbeing more effectively and
will also signpost them to appropriate services.

In Transforming Your Caranformation and communications technology platferane highlighted

as key enablers for efficient and effective headtid social care services. The PHA, in
collaboration with the Health and Social Care Baand the five HSC Trusts, established a project
board in February 2014 to take forward the NortHezfand Electronic Prescribing and Medicines
Administration (NIEPMA) project.

The goal of the project is to introduce an e-plibsog system into secondary care and the

associated changes in clinical practice. During4205 the project board established the structures
and requirements of the project and is currentiypgahrough the approvals stage for the outline

business case.

The project is expected to be in a position to cemee the procurement of a solution for Northern
Ireland by June 2015, with the aim of having a aeted supplier in place to implement a ‘phase 1’
pilot during 2016.

Another strategic development for HSC is the Nartheeland Electronic Care Record which is
enabling the delivery of faster, safer and bettee @cross Trusts and primary care. Since going
live in July 2013, NIECR has been accessed 3.1bomitimes in the provision of health care to
over 500,000 unique patients. NIECR continuesotérgm strength to strength and in 2014/15 won
two prestigious national awards, the e-Health kessalvard for ‘Best use of IT to support integrated
healthcare services’ and the Health Service Joawatd for ‘Enhancing Care by Sharing Data and
Information’. The project team has continued toidnthe system through integration of more
health and social care systems.
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Appraisal for medical practitioners is a requireiniem each doctor and annual enhanced appraisal
is required for the General Medical Council’s redation of doctors.

The third Public Health Annual Scientific Confereneas held in June 2014 and the theme was on
‘Diversity’. The conference provided an opportyrtid highlight a wide range of programmes and
initiatives targeting Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual andarisgender (LGB&T), Black Minority Ethnic
(BME) and Travellers as well as key data relatinghte health inequalities experienced by these
groups.

We continue to work in partnership with a wide rargf stakeholders to help address key issues
relating to theLGB&T Regional thematic action plamcluding support for the PRIDE festival,
LGB&T Arts Festival, Outburst, the HSC LGB&T Stdfbrum and the on-going promotion of the
‘Creating Inclusive Work Places’ initiative.

In April 2014, the eligible age range for the Bowancer Screening Programme was increased to
74 years. Uptake of the programme continues t@ase with 54% of those invited between April
and October 2014 taking up the invitation withinvi@eks. As individuals are given up to 6 months
to complete their screening test kit, uptake réaeshose invited up to end March 2015 will not be
available until October 2015. This compares to ®ii7 2013/14 and 48.9% in 2012/13.

Public Health programmes encourage the Northerandepopulation to make healthy lifestyle
choices, thereby reducing the risk of overweightl abesity-related diseases and creating an
environment that promotes a physically-active tifess During the past year we furthered this goal
through various initiatives including the Active Hdols Travel Programme in partnership with
SUSTRANS and the Department for Regional Developr(i2RD).

The programme is in place across Northern Irelaid ¥26 schools involved in encouraging pupils
to walk, cycle or scoot to school. This three-ypargramme, funded by the DRD and the PHA,
has the two-fold aim of tackling both childhood sity and reducing congestion on roads.

Northern Ireland has continued to achieve very gopthke rates for established immunisation

programmes, achieving results well above the UKay® All childhood vaccine uptakes remain

at high levels. At two years of age, the uptakehef primary vaccines remains steady at around
98.7% (UK: 96.6%). MMR uptake has now been abo6& %t 2 years old for 6 successive

quarters. In Northern Ireland the latest figur86s4% (UK: 93.0%)at March 2015.

A new flu vaccine programme for all 2-16 year oldldren is being introduced in a phased way
with Northern Ireland again achieving well above thK average. Uptake for pre-school children
was 53.8% (England 40%) and for primary schooldrkih was 79.6% up to 31 March 2015.

The PHA has consistently invested in HSC Researuh Bevelopment to ensure long-term
improvements in the health and wellbeing of thethemn Ireland population. During the past year,
we have progressed research in dementia care eutipfojects awarded funding in the second call
for proposals to the dementia care research prageam

The programme is a joint initiative being fundedthg PHA's HSC R&D Division and Atlantic
Philanthropies. The projects will run until 201@dawill be looking at Reminiscence Therapy;
Medicines Management; the Evaluation of a Heal#ncBassport; and, Technology Enriched
Supported Housing. In total, seven projects hawe Ideen funded under the programme.

11
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Smoking continues to present significant challengepublic health especially among our young
people. ‘Dead Cool’ is a smoking prevention ingmon and research was commissioned in
partnership with Cancer Focus NI and the HSC R&Bidlon. The aim is to evaluate this school-
based intervention for effectiveness within this ggoup.

The Public Health Directorate’s Health and SocialMeing Improvement Division also carried

out various initiatives during 2014/15 to suppoebple to stop smoking. In collaboration with

Belfast Tobacco Action Group and HSC Trusts, aedtalders’ event was held to establish a
Looked After Children Implementation Group to sugpstop smoking among this population, a
very high percentage of who smoke.

The following sections illustrate further examptésPublic Health Directorate activity and how we
achieved our goals during 2014/15.

Health Protection

Ebola Preparedness

Ebola virus disease (EVD) is a very serious illnegish a high mortality rate, that originated in
Africa. The current outbreak in West Africa (Gum&ierra Leone, and Liberia) is one of the most
challenging global public health threats in redenes.

The incubation period (the time between catchingirdaction and developing symptoms) is
2 to 21 days and the likelihood of contracting EDextremely low, unless the person has come
into contact with body fluids (e.g. blood, vomifadhoea, semen) of a symptomatic person. The
greatest impact of Ebola is, of course, on the [geopcountries affected and those providing care
for them. Action has been taken to halt the coofg¢@e outbreak in the affected countries and the
international effort, including some input from Nuwern Ireland as part of the UK response, is
beginning to produce positive results.

While the direct risk to Northern Ireland remaiosv] our health services must be prepared for the
possibility of a person who has arrived from areetééd country becoming ill when in Northern
Ireland. During 2014 the challenge for Health Petten was to lead and ensure preparedness
across all health services.

The PHA has been working with the HSC Trusts, RuHkalth England and others to strengthen
and test our preparedness to respond to a casevDf iy sharing plans for response and
undertaking surveillance of healthcare and othekens returning from the affected areas.

In October 2014 we led a comprehensive exerciserépare for the possible importation of
suspected cases of EVD to Northern Ireland. ExerGgeckedou (named after the area in Guinea
where the first case in the current outbreak wagrdised) was a half-day multi-agency table top
exercise aimed at testing local and regional pespragss for a suspected Ebola case in Northern
Ireland.

This exercise was jointly organised by the Depantinoé Health, Social Services and Public Safety

(DHSSPS) and the Health Protection Service, PHArtwide organisations with an opportunity to
discuss their local plans and the regional cootthnaarrangements.

12
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Although the overall risk to the population of Nwetn Ireland remains low, planning, training and
exercising will ensure that a case of EVD presgntmNorthern Ireland will be rapidly identified,

isolated and treated.

Health and Social Wellbeing Improvement

Working together to reduce health inequalities

It is widely recognised that disadvantaged comnmesigéxperience the greatest health inequalities.
Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGB&T) camities are also at increased risk of health
inequalities due to the stigma, bullying, harassmand discrimination often experienced, as well
as the common difficulty of being open with friended family. LGB&T people are also at
increased risk of mental health concerns (includingide), substance misuse, as well as sexually
transmitted infection.

The Rainbow Project (2011) demonstrated that neamky in four people working in the public
sector conceal their sexual orientation and 40%&gpondents have heard negative comments about
LGB&T people from a colleague or colleagues inwmwekplace.

In response to the report, the PHA has worked itnpeship with the Trade Unions to establish an
LGB&T forum for staff working across all health asdcial care (HSC) settings. The forum seeks
to provide a safe and welcoming space for leslgay, bisexual and transgender people working
within HSC, create an inclusive environment, angriove wellbeing.

The work of the forum has been recognised recétlyinning a prestigious Healthcare People
Management Association (HPMA) award for partnershgrking with Trade Unions and has also
been nominated for the ‘Excellence in Diversity’ aws.

Dedicated posters, information flyers and lanyandse been produced resulting in increased
visibility of the work of the forum in HSC sitesA comprehensive e-learning tool, Creating
Inclusive Workplaces, has been promoted among gtaffw.lgbtelearning.hscni.netand a
dedicated websitewivw.lgbtstaff.hscni.ngt offers advice, information and support for LGB&T
staff. These developments are important in thein awght but also as exemplars for other
employers.

The PHA has also been instrumental in the developwieprofessional guidelines which influence
service provision in HSC settings. This work hadluded a partnership with the Regulation and
Quality Improvement Authority (RQIA) for th8ee me, hear me, know gugdelines which aim to
support the needs of older lesbian, gay, bisexodlteansgender people in nursing, residential and
day care settings. Work has also commenced ialmaiation with the Royal College of General
Practitioners (RCGP) to develop guidelines to suppGB&T in General Practice.

The PHA is seeking to become the first HSC orgaioisao achieve the ‘Diversity Champion’
status and Charter Mark. Working in partnershihZidSO and The Rainbow Project, the Agency
will review the organisation’s policies to benchikagainst best practice. A training workshop for
key staff took place in August 2014 and an onlimevsy for staff is in developmental stages.

The PHA commissions a range of programmes to meetspecific needs of the LGB&T
community and also continues to be an active merobéne Trans+ Forum which specifically
supports the Transgender community in Northerraivel

13
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Service Development and Screening

Introduction of Digital Mammography to Breast Scraeg

Breast screening in Northern Ireland is routinelfer®d to women between the ages of 50 and
70 years. This population is projected to riselb% by 2021. Over the next three years 230,000
women are due to be invited for screening acrosshdm Ireland. The service also has a high
uptake with 77% of invited women attending in 2Q13/

Women over 70 are encouraged to self-refer foresing, which will lead to a further increase in
demand on the service.

During 2014 the PHA, in association with the Truséplaced all of the analogue mammography
units in the Breast Screening Programme (BSP) meth digital equipment. Digital mammograms
are easier to read and can be stored electroni¢afijke the older x-ray films which require
physical storage space), so these images willdredbn the Northern Ireland Picture Archive and
Communications System (PACS) and be easily availabl

An objective of the programme is to ensure thatteds of all participating women are met, as far
as possible, in terms of location and the screerengironment. This was achieved by
commissioning seven new mobile screening units egplace the five existing units, and by
providing mobile units at new screening locatiamseme rural areas. In addition, the new mobiles
have disability access and are all fitted with arhrgy loop system.

The fixed sites at Altnagelvin Area Hospital and_senhall Street in Belfast were also refurbished
and new digital mammography equipment installed.

HSC Research and Development

HSC R&D Division continues to support the HSC reskeaommunity in the acquisition of funds
from the National Institute for Health ResearchHR) Evaluation, Trials and Studies (NETS)
research programmes. Northern Ireland-based &@s®ar are increasingly benefitting from
DHSSPS investment in the NETS programmes by suttgsdeading studies across all
programmes.

During 2014/15, funding commitments were securedafturther three Northern Ireland-led studies
worth approximately £3.34 million; income which gapplemented through involvement in other
studies as co-investigators. Research led by Wortlreland researchers and worth a total of
£2.17 million has been funded through the PublialtheResearch Programme.

The Division has led on initiatives aimed at faamising our researchers with relevant processes
and guidance, and at improving the preliminary weankd supportive science underpinning
applications.

During 2014/15, the Department of Health (DH) plbta tool to assist researchers in their
application of the AcoRD (Attributing the costs diealth and social care Research and
Development) guidance. To support this, HSC R&Difon delivered an AcoRD workshop in
October 2014, which was attended by over 50 reptagees from Northern Ireland research
infrastructure and finance organisations from Be8C Trusts and academia. Further training and
information initiatives will follow the release tiie DH pilot report.
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HSC R&D Division has also been working with NETSd@dinating Centre (NETSCC) colleagues
to develop and deliver application workshops. E€hasn to encourage greater engagement with,
and understanding of, the NETS research programamesto work towards the development of
consistently high quality applications led from karn Ireland.

In February 2015, HSC R&D Division and NETSCC jtrdelivered two ‘How to secure NIHR

funding’ workshops which were attended by over h@@lth and social care researchers, 21 of
whom presented their research ideas for feedbatlappraisal.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT: NURSING AND ALLIED HEALTH PROFES SIONS

The PHA Nursing and Allied Health Professions Dioeate is responsible for professional, service
and public health issues relating to all areasun$ing, midwifery, health visiting and Allied Helalt
Professions and is also responsible for the HealthSocial Care Safety Forum. The Directorate
also provides regional leadership for personal @ralic involvement and issues related to quality,
safety and patient/client experience.

The Directorate has played a key role in the dearaknt and implementation of a number of
strategies and initiatives over the last year \kitlp achievements and developments evident across
professional and clinical, quality and safety amechl commissioning areas.

The Directorate has continued to implement a nunolbetey projects such as the Family Nurse
Partnership; Delivering Social Change Dementia d2t9j10,000 Voices; implementing recovery
through organisation change (ImMROC); and the Negroadl Conditions Awareness Programme.

Following the recent successful implementationhef Family Nurse Partnership programme in the
Western, Southern and Belfast HSC Trusts, it is h@mg extended to the Northern and South
Eastern HSC Trusts from March 2015.

The Northern Ireland Dementia Strategy continudsetanplemented across the region jointly with
HSCB and sets out a holistic model for supportiaggde with dementia. During 2014/15 funding
became available through the Delivering Social @eaDementia Project to progress work across
three specific work streams.

Evidence has shown that the ‘experience’ that pejecarers and their families have when they use
the health services is as important to them ascalireffectiveness and safety. Therefore, through
the 10,000 Voices initiative and monitoring the letpentation of the DHSSP’s patient and client

experience standards the PHA is focused on:

» listening to patients;
» learning from patients; and
* involving patients in improving services.

Work is also on-going to reduce the incidence t$ fand pressure ulcers to improve patient care.

On 4 March 2015 the PHA launched the first NeurwalgConditions Awareness Programme.
This programme was developed in partnership withNeurological Conditions Service User and
Carer Reference Group.

The Public Health Nursing Children and Young Pegpleeam (NCYPT) has embraced the
opportunity to lead ‘Work Stream One’ of the Eathtervention Transformation Programme
(EITP). The EITP initiative complements the impmitt work carried out by the team in relation to
the Maternity strategyand theHealthy child healthy futurestrategy. A revised maternity pathway
and a software package specifically designed toesddthe workforce issues faced by the health
visiting service are being led by the team.

The ImMROC mental health initiative has completedthird year and is changing the nature of
day-to-day interactions and the quality of expereeof people using mental health services and
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those close to them through the development ofvergocolleges in the community and the
establishment of peer support workers in mentdkiméeams.

Nursing and Connected Health staff contributecheodevelopment of a five-year HSC eHealth and
Care Strategy. The strategy was developed in ttatismn with relevant stakeholders including
patients; clients and their carers; members ofpiliglic; health and social care staff; as well as
industry and academia.

Work continues on the Regional Medicines Manageni&ietitian initiative. As part of the
Pharmaceutical Clinical Effectiveness Programmeaant consisting of five Dietitians and three
prescribing support technicians have worked withG¥® practices and the utilisation of dietitian
skills including dietetic assessment has improwvadtg and quality for patients and demonstrated
an efficiency of over £1m.

In line with the commissioning plan for 2014/15, A& Oncology Services are being developed
within all Trusts in Northern Ireland. Agreement2614/15 was secured that seven clinical nurse
specialists be recruited across five Trusts. TI®CB/PHA are working in partnership with
Macmillan Cancer Support to introduce this regiohalite Oncology Nursing Service.

Work is also continuing in developing models foruraphysiotherapy and direct access
physiotherapy.

In 2014/15 the PHA undertook a number of actioripihg to deliver on its strategic leadership role
and statutory Personal and Public Involvement (BBjgctives including:

* Development of a set of Standards and key perfocmandicators for PPI which were
launched by the Minister in March 2015;

* Design, development and initiation of formal PPImoring arrangements with HSC
Trusts;

» Design, development and piloting of a generic HS@ewWPPI training programme; and

» Provision of professional PPI advice, guidance amplport to a wide range of initiatives
both internally in the PHA and also across the HSC.

The following sections illustrate how the Directigraf Nursing and Allied Health Professionals
has progressed a selection of key projects.

eHealth

eHealth technology is a key enabler to supportiegvital changes in how health and social care is
delivered to meet the challenges of the future.

It can help provide services remotely and also owercommunications between care professionals
and with patients, clients and their carers. ethe@thnologies, including eAssistive Technologies
(eAT), are increasingly available to support or ioye daily living for those with physical sensory
or cognitive impairment.

As part of theeHealth and care strategyonsultation process a round table discussion avighoup
of young people with physical and learning disaieti was undertaken at Barnardos, Armagh. The
group were aged between 12 and 18 years.
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The young people saw a positive impact on the @ig#ealth, they were used to using technology
in their daily lives and wondered why health andiaglocare was so “behind the times” suggesting
that talking to their GP or social worker onlinedarsing FaceTime was the “way to go”.

The concept of patient portals where they could figliable health care information and electronic
care records to enable the flow of information abthe health and social care system were also
seen as positive developments as they hate totbated their story over and over again as they
move through the health and social care system.

When we talked about future technologies, the gaupe up with some great hi-tech suggestions —
voice-activated gadgets to record their needs and them to professionals; apps with GPS to help
them live independently; and, implantable chips duauld have all their information on them which
could be scanned like a supermarket barcode.

Northern Ireland Dementia Strategy

The Northern Ireland Dementia Strategy continudsetanplemented across the region jointly with
HSCB and sets out a holistic model for supportirgpgde with dementia. In this model the
individual with dementia is a valued member of sbgi

During 2014 the Delivering Social Change/AtlanticilBnthropies Joint Programme on dementia
proposed actions that can make a significant daution to fulfilling the aims of thédementia
strategy Three work streams are being taken forward:

1. Awareness Raising, Information and Support — whachs to increase awareness of dementia
amongst three groups of people: the general puthla@se working in services which interact
with the public; and those working in health andiabcare. The PHA is tasked with drawing up
a plan to:

» address the stigma of dementia;

* raise public awareness about what can be doneadt@eethe risk of or delay of dementia;
and

» raise public awareness of the signs and symptorderagntia and about the benefits of
seeking help early.

2. Training and Development — which aims to coordirateaining and development plan across
primary, community and secondary care, in statutmg non-statutory sectors, to improve
knowledge and skills in providing care to peoplehwdementia. This plan will include the
needs of those providing informal care to peoplthwliementia. The HSC Safety Forum has
also identified the need to support health andasaare staff working on the management of
delirium and dementia through the use of evideraset improvement methodology.

3. Provision of respite and short breaks — which amnexpand the range, frequency, quality and

flexibility of respite/short breaks and to reduadiance on the traditional institutional care
model.
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Links have been established with key stakeholdeckiding people living with dementia to
ensure a collaborative approach to the developofesgrvices.

Family Nurse Partnership

Family Nurse Partnership (FNP) is an internationedicognised evidence-based primary-
prevention and early-help programme for first-tipoeing mothers and their babies.

FNP focuses on preventing risky behaviours, dedgethrough a trusting, respectful, therapeutic
relationship, using licensed methods, tools ancerads. There are clear cost benefits.

FNP offers structured, regular home visiting by ighty trained Family Nurse from early in
pregnancy until the child’s second birthday. Thare now three FNP teams and 268 mothers on
the programme, with 78 mothers completing the @ogne by March 2015. From April 2015 two
new teams will start visiting in South Eastern &latthern Trusts.

Claire is a young mother who has completed the pNramme and we are extremely grateful to
be able to share her story.

Claire, an 18 year old who had been a looked-affeitd, was recruited to FNP while living in
temporary accommodation, isolated from family amd baby’s abusive father. She was not in
education or training and had extremely low conficke and little trust in professionals.

Claire’s family nurse provided a consistent safacgpfor Claire to build trust and explore her
difficulties. Claire’s Family Nurse used motivatannterviewing to support behaviour change and
Partners in Parents Education (PIPE) to promoteibgmarenting skills. Claire learnt about trust,
love, baby cues, play and attachment in an intéracivay and applied these in her everyday care
of her baby.

Claire found appropriate housing and created a wataving home and met a small number of
supportive friends. Claire also found a part-tinok jand started college.

During the two and half years Claire has been gbiby her family nurse, her confidence and
self-efficacy have grown, both in her ability asnather and as a person. She graduated from the
FNP programme with a career goal to becoming a apahd as a mature, confident young woman.

Allied Health Professions and Personal and Publicnivolvement

The joint HSCB/PHA Regional Medicines Managementdditian Initiative

The Regional Medicines Management Dietitian Iniiatis part of the Regional Pharmaceutical
Clinical Effectiveness (PCE) Programme to improualiy, safety and efficacy of medicines use in
Northern Ireland.

As part of the PCE programme a team consistingvef dietitians and three prescribing support
technicians was established in September 2013 tk within GP practices across Northern Ireland
to review patients on Oral Nutritional Suppleme(@NS) and to ensure appropriate use of
supplements.
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At 1 January 2015, 90 GP practices out of a tofaB%0 have availed of the initiative. The
utilisation of dietitian skills including dietetiassessment has improved safety and quality for
patients and demonstrated an annual efficiencyLdf79,805.

The initiative has also received positive feedbfaiokn GPs and service users. It has demonstrated
innovative working with practices through the creatof an electronic database for patient
assessment, clinical record keeping and outcomsumegeneration.

The initiative was recently recognised at the Nemthireland Advancing Healthcare Awards where
it won the award for ‘Maximising resources usingdewnce-based practice — maximising resources
for success’.

Following dietetic assessment, prescriptions forSOMere discontinued in 57.2% of cases with
cost-effective amendments made to a further 21.2éases.

In addition to this, over 70 nursing homes withigratls registered in these GP practices have also
availed of training for nursing staff and catersigff.

Two workshops were facilitated by Northern Irelai@kentre for Pharmacy Learning and
Development in June 2014 with 100% of evaluatioesgjonnaires completed described the quality
of the course/content as good/very good.

Practice-Based Learning (PBL) training has beeiveled to GPs and staff in Southern and South
Eastern Local Commissioning Group areas with dag¢esling for Northern area.
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT: OPERATIONS
The Operations Directorate provides expertise im@anications, Health Intelligence, Planning,
Governance and Operational Services and througkimgpwith colleagues elsewhere in the PHA
and other bodies, we ensure that the PHA’s wodknderpinned by good communication, a strong

evidence base, effective business processes araeraent of resources.

Communications

Critical to the PHA’'s work is ensuring that it effarely communicates at all times, from
proactively providing advice on the many issuesafhg well-being and health, developing
sustained public information campaigns designedddress major issues such as bowel cancer,
obesity and suicide to ensuring critical advicdisseminated to the public and care professiornals a
times of infectious disease outbreak.

To do this, the PHA’'s communications function cevarwide range of activities and professional
services including developing and designing suppuosterials, websites, public information
campaigns, public relations and social media.

The past year has been extremely busy on all conwations’ fronts and has been underpinned
with a particular focus on exploiting the potenfra@im key and emerging communications channels
to allow wider and more effective delivery of ouessages.

Social media

During 2014/15, particular emphasis was placed len use and development of social media
channels to enhance the agency’s online engageanwty and reach.

For example, ‘rich media’ such as infographics,eeicand photographs were used to complement
posts on social media channels to a greater dégreehance the likelihood of drawing attention to
agency messaging.

A noteworthy first during the year was the use bAPof Twitter to hold an interactive question
and answer session, in this case on Ebola, whengbers of the public could ask about the illness
and receive a response directly from Dr Lorrainé&ty, Assistant Director for Health Protection.
As a result of wider efforts to develop the usesatial media, the two main channels used by the
agency — Twitter and Facebook — both enjoyed afgignt increase in follower numbers and saw
significant levels of ‘shares’, including from higiofile individuals and organisations.

The number of Twitter followers rose from 1,963IoApril 2014 to 3,446 on 31 March 2015.
Facebook followers increased from 838 on 1 April2@o 4,735 on 31 March 2015.

Public relations

The PHA undertook a sustained and effective programof public relations activity around key

programmes and issues during the course of the wb&h resulted in high levels of coverage and
dissemination.
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For example, one of the key areas of work duriregytear was communications preparedness for
Ebola. PHA communications staff created a regigatocol for the handling of potential and
confirmed Ebola cases, and has liaised with Whiktedraboth ‘scares’ and confirmed cases. In
addition, at the outset, briefings with key jouists took place to explain the context, risk and
preparedness for Ebola in Northern Ireland, whielp&d contribute to responsible reporting when
potential cases arose.

A key activity was the continuation of public reétats work in support of PHA campaigns,

including organ donation, obesity and mental healtd, in addition, considerable success was
achieved in highlighting the launch of the ‘Be Canéware’ campaign, with a broad range of
coverage across key media outlets.

The PHA also worked closely with the DHSSPS, HS@nea organisations, other departments and
statutory bodies, and third sector organisatiamgxtend the reach of public health messaging, both
through complementing others’ public relations \attj such as with support quotes, and
collaborative work.

New campaign development

During the year, multi-media campaigns ran on tvewsv rhigh-profile campaigns — cancer and
mental health, supplementing other extensive cagnpadtivity on obesity; bowel cancer screening;
organ donation; and smoking cessation. Developrhemtk on a sexual health campaign for 2015
was also initiated.

Website development and design

With the rapid increase in the local population esstng online information through their
smartphones, tablets and computers, the PHA hasuaed to ensure that a strategic approach is
taken to ensuring all important health-related ninfation is accessible by new digital devices and
with suitable high quality formats.

Making sure our sites are developed with mobileia=/in mind has been our first criteria for
developing any new site over the last 12 monthse hAve also been retrospectively modifying a
selection of older sites so as they too meet tiitisri.

Specific work during the year has included webdiggelopment, design, branding, management
and support of a wide range of stand-alone websitdading the newBe Cancer Awarevebsite
and of the soon-to-be-launched sexual health websit

On-going technical support, content developmenthysite management and testing of all PHA
websites — currently numbering 18 — continued arduded important work o€hoose to Live
Better, Minding Your Headthe Hepatitis B&C website and a new R&D website.

Support materials

Development of a range of printed and online reseaicontinued throughout 2014/15 in support of

the promotion and advancement of public health ativjes. These included a wide variety of
materials such as booklets, newsletters, leatietiiing resources, factsheets and reports.
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Examples of specific projects include materials ti@iners to roll out the establish€tbok It!
nutrition programme for people with learning didiieis, a personal health journal for children in
care, and materials in support of a new Health+mhay scheme.

With an increasingly diverse and cosmopolitan Igugbulation, we have ensured our materials are
compliant with relevant equality requirements aadily accessed and read by our target audiences.
Development and management of content for our rarigeealth topic websites has progressed,
with a new site in support of the cancer awarermsgdic information campaign launched in
February. These sites are an increasingly impbsgamrce of information and signposting for our
programmes of work.

Internal communication

Acknowledging the importance of good communicatjgarticularly since PHA staff are based over
several offices throughout Northern Ireland, wedtarted an audit of our internal communications
to help us understand what we are doing well anergvive need to improve.

Two thirds of PHA staff completed the online audhich generated almost 700 comments. All
results were analysed and have resulted in a rahgeactical actions to help make improvements
to our staff communications. This will ensure veatinue to provide high quality information that

is relevant, timely, accessible and as helpfulassible to staff in their daily work.

During the year staff were kept informed of keyanigation developments via regular emails from
the Chief Executive’s Office and the Director of@dgtions as well as through home page features
on the PHA intranet site ‘Connect’ and additionsei@vant staff sections of the site.

The Agency’'s Management Team met several timeshaguhe year with union and staff-side
representatives to discuss issues of interest dmgjuemployee relations, communications and
pending reviews being led by DHSSPS.

Work began during the year on developing the PH# ategic direction for the next five years and,
to ensure effective engagement with key stakehslatefurther developing our priorities and how
we work to achieve these, staff were invited teradt and actively contribute to a workshop on
strategic direction in December. This staff worksrencouraged different thinking about future
PHA priorities and drew on the ideas and aspiratiohstaff to help inform the production of the
next Corporate Strategy for 2016-2020.

Emphasis

The OWD programme continued to focus on the foltmwifour key building blocks for
organisational development:

* engaging with staff;

» staff wellbeing;

* learning and development training;
e communicating internally.

Focussing on these priorities, the Organisation Whwatkforce Development Group (OWDG)
continued to make headway to inform, manage, coatdiand share learning and development
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activities across the PHA through the Emphasisnarmogie and to ensure that all staff are equipped
with the necessary skills to enable them to deliulty on the business needs of the organisation.

Health Intelligence

During the year, the health intelligence functiomtinued to contribute to a range of reports,
workshops and presentations on topics as diverssgaality, organ donation, obesity, smoking
mental healttand the elderly and supported the PHA’s expandedgramme of public information
campaigns. Much of what we do in these areas & sapportive role and rarely published under
our own name.

Comprehensive briefs were produced on births, ecaneointentional injuries, breast feeding,
minority ethnic groups, suicide and Lesbian, Gaysé&ual and Transgender (LGB&T) health.

Specific evaluations of effectiveness and outcomese completed on major health improvement
programmes including the maximising access to eesyi grants and benefits in rural areas
(MARA) programme, Farm families, Food in Schoolsgl &ifeline, the suicide prevention helpline.
New evaluations are underway on regional initiaigach as the weight management in pregnancy
project and One Stop Shops.

Family nurse partnership projects in the HSC Tristge been expanded with a resultant increase
in the demand for more comprehensive informatiod esporting systems. Health Intelligence
have taken the lead in developing this system aodiging the required data analysis services.

This includes providing information for annual regocand reviews.

A range of specific projects have also been comagletcluding an audit of inpatient diabetes
experience and work on the risk factors for ho$pitinission in the first year of life.

The supporting tables around public health and iBpgables on diversity for the DPH annual
report and the ‘Children’s Health in Northern Iredia report drawing data from Northern Ireland
Chest Heart and Stroke (NICHS) and Northern Irelsliadernity Information System (NIMATS) to

provide a regional and Trust level statistical peobf births in NI were again produced and
disseminated.

Qualitative work was undertaken to support antednatiucation and bowel, breast and cervical
screening related work.

We also worked to develop or enhance performandeoatcome measures and the reporting of
these for regional strategies such as on obegsiggstfeeding and smoking or for the PHA’s own
performance framework.

Following the publication of the Making Life Bett8trategy, we are working with Northern Ireland
Statistics and Research Agency (NISRA), DHSSPSeaglies in Health and Social Wellbeing
Improvement (HSWBI) and the HSCB to reconfigure tNerthern Ireland Neighbourhood
Information Service (NINIS) web portal to make infation available as widely as possible at as
many geographical levels as practical across teadbh of the determinants of health e.g. from
poverty and social isolation to individual behaviourhis is designed to support the wider public
health agenda and the development of communitynpignwith the new councils and is intended
for release early in 2015/16.
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Operational Services

During 2014/15 we continued to build on, and enkammur core governance arrangements,
ensuring a sound and appropriate foundation foPHIA business. This included reviewing and
updating policies, maintaining and updating the Pabsurance framework and approving a new
Information Governance Strategy for the period 2289 and associated annual action plan.

During the year staff within the Operations Direate, working with the Business Continuity
Project Team, revised and amended its Policy onnBas Continuity Management and Business
Continuity Plan to align it to the new Internatibi@&andard on Business Continuity Management
Systems (ISO 22301).

The new ISO standard places a stronger focus omngiating leadership commitment to Business
Continuity Planning and greater emphasis is plamedensuring that all staff are aware of the
Business Continuity Plan and that they understhan tole at a time of disruption.

The PHA is committed to providing a safe and hegaltlorking environment which recognises that
the wellbeing of its staff is an important companeiithis. During the past year various health and
safety-related policies have been revised and egdatluding the Fire Safety Policy, Fire Alarm
and Evacuation Procedures, the Health and SafdityRmd the Security Policy.

Additionally, we continued to undertake Display &m Equipment (DSE) Assessments or
Workstation Assessments during the year ensuriag dh employee’s workstation is adequately
equipped and adjusted to suit the user’s needs.

In our Annual Report for 2013/14 we indicated tp&ns were advancing to acquire new more
suitable accommodation in Belfast. Unfortunatehe tproposed new accommodation was
withdrawn from the market at the last minute. Asesult, while we have continued to work with
DHSSPS to resolve our accommodation issues. The éd#finues to face significant pressures in
respect of insufficient space and split-site wogkin

Planning and Performance

During 2014/15, the PHA made significant progressaking forward the implementation of its
Procurement Plan for the provision of health andb&eng services.

In the same period, a total of 12 tenders wererpssgd across a number of areas including drug
and alcohol services, sexual health, screeningnaetal health. These tenders have resulted in
approximately 35 contract awards being made aabgeographical areas, with an annual value of
£5.25m.

Key support tools included revising the PHA websitiéh regular updates to keep all potential
providers up to date on progress with tenders andllow all documentation to be accessed
electronically.

We also developed a suite of tender documentsrdikdcted PHA requirements including the
inclusion of wider social considerations, sociaudes as recommended by CPD and the ability to
award contracts based on agreed ‘Lots’. We hadéiadally put in place internal control systems
and processes for effectively managing the devetoprand evaluation of tender documentation.
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‘PHA beyond 2015’
Work commenced in 2014/15 to review the currentl develop a new, PHA Corporate Strategy.
A project board, including Non-Executive and Ex@aitDirectors, was established to provide
oversight and direction, with the work being takkemvard and coordinated by the Operations
Directorate with input from all Directorates.
Engagement is fundamental to the development ohéve strategy. A wide range of PHA staff
participated in a workshop in December 2014 to @bossible priorities for the new strategy.
Two external, large stakeholder workshops were meMarch 2015 to obtain wider views.

Social media has also been used to obtain inpaot &avider public audience. The new Corporate
Strategy will be finalised in 2015/16, building the information gathered from this engagement.
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THE CENTRE FOR CONNECTED HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE

The Centre for Connected Health and Social CareH®&X0), located within the PHA, continued to
promote improvements in patient care through tleeaigechnology and to fast-track new products
and innovation in the HSC system in Northern Irdlan

CCHSC continued to contribute to improving heahld avellbeing through a number of partnership
activities including:

» work with the HSCB to produce a&Health and care strategy fétealth and Social Care,
ensuring that the strategic aims of the PHA ary felflected;

» the Telemonitoring NI service, which provides bd@#iehealth and Telecare services across
Northern Ireland, continued to develop with cliemimbers continuing to grow throughout
the year;

* continuing to contribute to the work of the Européanovation Partnership on Active and
Healthy Ageing (EIP AHA) through involvement in amber of action groups to improve
the health of older people in Northern Ireland ancbss Europe;

» coordination of the EU-funded project called Beyddibs which aims to improve the
integration of service delivery by building on tNerthern Ireland Electronic Care Record
and implementing an interactive Shared Care Plan;

» working with local Health and Social Care Trustsdjaread learning from EU-funded
projects such as Implementing Transnational TelécmezlSolutions;

* working in conjunction with Trusts, HSCB, PHA, uaigities and industry to pursue EU
funding opportunities such as Horizon 2020, E®) Bealth Programme, Interreg V and
other EU funding streams;

« delivering action plans from the Connected HealgmMrandum of Understanding with the
City of Oulu, Finland in line with DHSSPS objectsv@n developing Connected Health
links with Europe.

Technology making life easier for stroke patients

A new service piloted during 2014/15, making usesideoconferencing for speech and language
therapy is making life easier for people who haad h stroke and live in the Newry and Mourne
area.

The service, led by the Centre for Connected Heatith Social Care, is funded through the EU
Northern Periphery Programme and is part of a numife projects under Implementing
Transnational Telemedicine Solutions (ITTS) whicimsa to use technology to improve
accessibility of services in marginal areas of peto

Following a stroke patient’'s discharge from hodpitae team of specialist nurses, social workers,
occupational therapists and speech and languagapteies work with them for 12 weeks in their
own homes to help them regain their independence.

The solution involves installing videoconferencieguipment at the Trust’s base clinics linked to
units in client’'s own homes. The system’s highesp@om allows the therapists to clearly
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demonstrate exercises and examine the progreseiofdients. Whilst still maintaining face-to-
face contact, videoconferencing allows them toraodigditional sessions to more clients and more
intensive therapy.

The Southern Trust is the first to pilot the pragnae which offers video link sessions between the
specialist stroke speech and language therapiddsiay Hill Hospital and Kilkeel Health Centre
and the patient in their own home.

This service has received positive feedback frotrepes who have responded that the service is
easy-to-use and helps with recovery.

From a speech and language therapist’s perspebv&ervice has resulted in:

» provision of more intensive speech and languagapyeto patients;
* improved clinical outcomes;

» shorter clinical sessions where appropriate;

* reduced significantly travel time and costs;

* increased clinical capacity; and

e increased response times to new referrals dueteased capacity.

Feedback from patients has been very posibamnian McElholm, a 56 year old from Warrenpoint
has been using the system to have speech thenaggytiilmes a week. He said: “It's easy to use and
| can have more sessions to help with my recovery.”

Angela McVeigh, Director of Older People and Prign&are for Southern Health and Social Care
Trust said:Stroke can have a devastating impact on peoplgis| affecting their ability to move,
eat, speak or carry out simple tasks. The videf@rencing link has been a great success so we
will be exploring how this might be used by othealth professionals delivering services within the
community.”

This project clearly demonstrates the potentialinfprove health and wellbeing through the

CCHSC's collaboration with European partners anvokks to bring new ideas, knowledge and
innovation to the wider HSC.
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MANAGEMENT COMMENTARY

The PHA comprises three Directorates as shownemthanisational structure below:

Public Health

HSC Agency

Dr Carolyn Harper

Assistant Directors

Health Protection
Dr Lorraine Doherty

Health and Social
Wellbeing Improvement
Mary Black

Service Development
and Screening
Dr Janet Little

HSC R&D
Dr Janice Bailie

1. Also Medical Director for HSCB.

Dr Eddie Rooney

Pat Cullen

Assistant Directors

Allied Health Professions
and Public Involvement
Michelle Tennyson

Nursing, Safety,
Quality and Patient/
Client Experience
Oriel Brown’®

Public Health, Nursing,
Children and Young
People
Una Turbitt

Assistant Directors

Planning and
Corporate Services
Rosemary Taylor

Communication
and Knowledge
Management
Stephen Wilson

2. Interim Director from May 2013 to April 2015. Mary Hinds was seconded to NHSCT and DHSSPS from May 2013

to April 2015.

3. Appointed Lead Officer in May 2013.
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Equality

The PHA is fully committed to equal opportunitiggdehas in place an Employment Equality of
Opportunity Policy to promote and provide equaldyall groupings Under Section 75 of the
Northern Ireland Act 1998. More information is daale on the PHA’s website at
www.publichealth.hscni.net

Disability Action Plan

As part of the Disability Discrimination Order 2QaBe PHA developed a Disability Action Plan to
demonstrate how the organisation promotes postiteides towards disabled people and involves
disabled people in the work that we do.

Specific work during the year to deliver on our coitments under the plan is included below.
Disabled employees

If a member of staff has become disabled duringpotiteod when they are employed by the PHA,
the organisation then works closely with Human Reses (HR) who are guided by advice from
Occupational Health. Subsequently, reasonable maguds can be made to accommodate the
employee, including possible redeployment, in lnth relevant disability legislation. This
legislation is incorporated into selection and wéonent training and induction training and is
highlighted in relevant policies where necessary.

Disability Awareness Days

Under the action plan, the PHA has committed tsimgi awareness amongst staff of specific

disabilities. The main way of achieving this is ffiling awareness days. We featured two days
during 2014/15, World Sight Day in October 2014 &wpression Awareness Day in January 2015.
The aim was to raise staff awareness around phkaticlisabilities, the barriers they pose, the

experience of living with these disabilities, wisé&ff can do to support colleagues and where staff
can access further support and information.

During the summer a staff engagement exercise wakertaken to ask staff for ideas and
suggestions on how best to feature World Sight Baya result PHA linked with a range of public
and voluntary sector organisations who work witbpde with sight loss as well as drawing on the
expertise of PHA staff from the Developing Eyedaegtnerships team.

On Depression Awareness Day, Cruse and the Sanspgtavided staff with information at several
office locations and staff had the opportunity ttga&ge in activities and to hear and speak to
representatives from both voluntary sector orgaioissa as well as with service users.

For both events, we also included dedicated festiaréhe new ‘Disability Insight’ publication
series that was circulated to staff. Display stamitls further information materials were also
located at several offices during the days.

Work Placements

As part of a pilot scheme, led by our partnerstia HSC Board and the Business Services
Organisation in collaboration with Supported Emphant Solutions, we offered a 24-week work
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placement for a person with a disability. Unfodtely, the facilitating organisation was unable to

match a candidate to our placement. We remaig édimmitted to the scheme and intend to offer
placements again in 2015/16, based on the leataibg taken from the pilot.

Accessible Formats Policy
We introduced an accessible formats policy and igeal staff with access to a toolkit to support

them in delivering on the commitments made in tledicg. This includes making sure that
information provided to staff is delivered in acsibte formats for those staff who have a disability

Staff Disability Forum
We worked with other HSC partner organisations xpl@&e options for setting up a HSC-wide
forum for staff with a disability. As some HSC argsations already have fora in place, we have

decided to team up with the other 10 regional H&§awisations with a view to setting up a joint
forum in 2015/16.

Equality Conference

In partnership with the other 10 regional HSC ors@tions, we hosted an equality, diversity and
human rights conference in February 2015.

Focusing on the business benefits of equality, munnghts-based approaches and diversity, the
event was designed to share good practice andngapetween staff working in health and social
care organisations. This included a session omxperience of recruiting a person with a learning
disability.

Staff Engagement

Work has also been ongoing through staff engageawnss the organisation to discuss what the
PHA can do to further make a difference for peoplhd a disability both through its work and as

an employer.

Sickness Absence Data

The corporate cumulative annual absence level Her RHA for the period from 1 April 2014
— 31 March 2015 is 2.55%. (2013-2014 3.56%)

There were 15,221.69 hours lost due to sicknessnabs or, the equivalent of 46 hours lost per
employee. Based on a 7.5 hour working day, thesjisal to 6.13 days per employee.

This is 3.57 days lower than the national averdg@. D days per employee for the Health Sector
(CIPD Absence Management Report 2014

Information Governance
During 2014/15 the PHA continued to fulfil obligais under legislation such as theedom of

Information Actand theData Protection Act The PHA has further developed Itformation
governance strategy incorporate the Information Governance Framé&wor
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It sets out the Framework to ensure that PHA mést®bligations in respect of Information
Governance; it will also be the vehicle for impmayilnformation Governance in the PHA.

The Information Governance Strategy supersede2ah2-2015 version and covers the four year
period from 2015-2019 and will be supported byahaual Information Management Action Plan
setting out how it will be implemented.

The Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) and Infatian Asset Owners (IAOjontinued to
work to ensure that information assets and infolnatisk were managed effectively.

Progress against the Information Management Aciidan was reported to the Information
Governance Steering group and the Governance adid Bammittee.

The PHA continued to roll-out the regional HSC mmh@ation governance e-learning programme.
This includes modules on Records Management, Datad®ion and ICT Security.

No major personal data protection incidents occld@ing 2014/15.
Freedom of Information Requests

During the year the PHA received and responded noraber of Freedom of Information (FOI)
requests as follows:

FOI requests received from 1 April 2014 to 31 Ma2i5 = 37.
In addition, the PHA received and responded toSulgiect Access Request during this period.

Assembly Questions

The PHA received and responded to 123 written Abber@uestions and 14 oral Assembly
Questions during 2014/15.

Consultations

In the 2014/15 financial year, the PHA undertook @onsultation: Consultation on Infant Mental
Health Framework and Plan 2015-2018.

Sustainability

The PHA is committed to protecting the environmantl has a commitment to sustainability,
environmental, social and community issues. Itsai;munderstand the impact on the environment
of its activities and to manage its operations iaysvthat are environmentally sustainable and
economically feasible.

The PHA has had aanvironmental policandWaste management strategy goadicy in place for
several years now. These are designed to bringetattention of all employees, suppliers and
contractors, the PHA's position in regard to enwimental issues and waste reduction
(prevent/reuse/dispose) and demonstrate a desireomtinually improve its performance in
environmental sustainability and waste management.

During the year, the PHA developedastainable development stratedgyhis strategy sets out the
PHA'’s approach to sustainable development. Itdess shaped around the priority areas contained
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within the Office of the First Minister and depuBirst Minister's (OFMDFM’s) Sustainable
Development StrategyThe PHA is committed to the principles of susaéile development and
will endeavour to integrate these into its dailyhates.

It will seek to increase awareness of sustainableldpment within the PHA generally and to
ensure that wherever possible its overall busiaesigities support the achievement of sustainable
development objectives.

The PHA continues to support and implement a rarfigeistainability initiatives such as the Cycle
to Work Scheme; Bus/Rail Translink Scheme (whicboeimages employees to use public transport
and reduce their carbon footprint); the adoption redw online-based systems (HRPTS/
e-procurement) moving away from paper-based systeemsralised printing devices for the
production of printed material (replacing printieguipment at each workstation); waste paper
recycling and video and teleconferencing facilities

Property Asset Management

The PHA is committed to providing a high standafrdaacommodation for our staff to ensure that
they can work in a safe environment that is condudo delivering the objectives of the
organisation and promoting staff wellbeing.

In the year under review, the PHA reviewed and tgutlats Property Management Plawhich
provided an assessment of the current state of &ffide accommodation and outlined steps, taken
and planned, to ensure property standards and f@ueoney is in keeping with the future needs
of the organisation as it goes forward.

Training

The PHA is fully committed to the ongoing trainiagd development of all members of staff and
through the performance appraisal system all stedf afforded this opportunity irrespective of
ability/disability as well as having the same ogpnities to progress through the organisation.

The PHA has a responsibility to provide trainingd aawareness for staff on a range of topics.
Mandatory health and safety, fire safety, inform@atjovernance and risk management training was
provided for all staff.

Additional specialist training was available inw@mber of areas including equality screening, Mood
Matters, recruitment and selection, IT packagesleadership development.

Pension Liabilities

Information may be found within notes to the acdsu#i.20) in this combined Annual Report and
Accounts document.

Complaints

The PHA received one formal complaint during tharys addition to one complaint received
regarding services commissioned by the PHA.
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If you wish to make a formal complaint or requesbay of our complaints procedure, please write
to: Director of Nursing and Allied Health Professsp Public Health Agency, 12-22 Linenhall
Street, Belfast, BT2 8BS.

Public Sector Payment Policy — Measure of Complianc

The Department requires that the PHA pays theirHH8Q trade creditors in accordance with the
CBI Prompt Payment Policy and Government AccouniRuges.

The PHA’s payment policy is consistent with the GBbmpt payment codes and Government
Accounting Rules and its measure of compliance lmarfound within note 15 of the Annual
Accounts within this combined document.

Staff Numbers

The average number of whole time equivalent persamdoyed by the PHA during the year can be
found in note 3 of the Annual Accounts within theambined document.

Charitable Donations

The PHA did not make any charitable donations dytie financial year.

Audit Services

The PHA'’s statutory audit was performed by ASM Qéid Accountants on behalf of the
Northern Ireland Audit Office and the notional aj@rfor the year ended 31 March 2015 was
£16,400. An additional amount of £1,232 was paithe Audit Office in respect of work carried
out on the National Fraud Initiative.

Statement on Disclosure of Audit Information

All Directors can confirm that they are not awafeaay relevant audit information of which the
external auditors are unaware. The accountingeaffnas taken all necessary steps to ensure that
all relevant audit information which he is awareéhak been passed to the external auditors.
Preparation of Accounts

The PHA has prepared a set of accounts for thegmmded 31 March 2015 in accordance with the

relevant legislative requirements and these carobed within this combined document. The
Governance Statement is also published in fulliwithis combined document.
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The Continuing Work of the Public Health Agency

This Annual Report has so far focused on our wark gargets achieved during the 2014/15
financial year. In planning our work for 2015/16ddreyond we must take account of the regulatory
and strategic environment in which we operate.

A key priority for 2015/16 is the implementation thfe ‘Making Life Better — A Whole System
Strategic Framework for Public Health 2013-2023\ick sets out an updated strategic direction
for public health for the next ten years. The PhEs a lead role and will seek to take forward its
recommendations both through specific actions dt ageby working closely with DHSSPS and
other partners through existing and recently-eistiaétl structures.

The PHA established and chairs the Regional Prdgeetrd for Public Health which comprises
Chief Executive Officers of relevant statutory agjes including representation from health and
social care, local government, the community antuntary sector and the private sector and
reports to the All Departments Officials Group (ABD

The Project Board will also be informed by and wilipport local partnerships with an initial focus
on strengthening collaboration and coordinationdéiver on the following strategic priorities
across sectors at regional and local levels:

e caring connected communities;
» active travel/space and place; and
e neighbourhood renewal.

We will also be continuing important work alreadglivunder way to develop and finalise our
Corporate Strategy for 2016—2020.

Within the local government arena, we will continleework closely with, and build upon our

relationships with, local councils as they makarth@nsition into the larger super-councils. We
look forward to contributing to important work thabuncils will assume the lead for, such as
community planning, and to helping achieve our cammoals.

During 2015/16 we will also continue building uptbre many partnerships already in place as well
as developing important Personal and Public Invoket work.
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REMUNERATION REPORT

A Committee of Non-Executive Board members exigsts advise the full Board on the
remuneration and terms and conditions of servic&émior Executives employed by the PHA.

Whilst the salary structure and the terms and d¢mmdi of service for Senior Executives is

determined by the Department of Health Social $ess/iand Public Safety (DHSSPS), the
Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee hasyaréle in assessing the performance of
Senior Executives and, where permitted by DHSSRjeetng the discretionary level of

performance related pay. A circular on the 2014%ERior Executive pay award has not been
received from the DHSSPS, therefore related paysnémive not been made to Executive
Directors.

The salary, pension entittement and the value of @xable benefits in kinds paid to both
Executive and Non-Executive Directors is set ouerteaf. None of the Executive or Non-
Executive Directors of the PHA received any bonugerformance related pay in 2014/15. It
should be noted that Non-Executive Directors do remteive pensionable remuneration and
therefore there will be no entries in respect afgiens for Non-Executive members.

The PHA is required to disclose whether there veenestaff or public sector appointees contracted
through employment agencies or self-employed wittost of over £58,200 during the financial
year, which were not paid through the PHA Payrollln 2014/15 there were no such
‘off-payroll’ engagements.

Early Retirement and Other Compensation Schemes

There were no early retirements or payments of emsgtion for other departures relating to Senior
Executives during 2014/15.

Membership of the Remuneration and Terms of Servic€ommittee:
Ms M McMahon - Chair of the Board (until 30 Novemi{2©14)
Ms J Erskine - Acting Chair of the Board (from 1desmber 2014)

Dr J Harbison - Non-Executive Director
Cllr W Ashe - Non-Executive Director
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Senior Management Remuneration (Table Audited)

The salary, pension entitlements, and the valuangftaxable benefits in kind of the most senior
members of the PHA were as follows:

2014/15 2013/14
Name Salary |Benefits| Pension | Total | Salary | Benefits| Pension | Total
£000s |in Kind | Benefits | £000 | £000s | in Kind | Benefits | £'000
(to (to (to (to
nearest| nearest nearest| nearest
£100) | £1000) £100) | £1000)
Non-Executive
Members
M McMahon _
(left 30/11/14) 20-25 200 - 20-25| 30-35 0 - 30-3b
J Erskine
(Interim Chair 15-20 100 - 15-20 5-10 0 - 5-10
from 01/12/14)
J Harbison 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10
M Karp 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10
T Mahaffy 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10
P Porter 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10
W Ashe 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10
B Coulter 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10
Executive
Members
E P Rooney 115-120 700 22,000 | 140-14p115-120 O 21,000 | 135-140
C Harper 145-150 O 33,000 | 175-180140-145 100 30,000 | 170-175
E McClean 80-85 300 29,000 110-115/5-80 100 13,000 90-95
P Cullen
(Appointed
Acting Director | 85-90 0 - 85-90 65-70 100 - 65-70
of Nursing
01/06/13) (1)

(1) This is a temporary acting up post which sthiteJune 2013 therefore the annual calculatiopesfsion benefit is
not applicable.
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Median Salary (Table Audited)
The relationship between remuneration of the maghly paid director and the median

remuneration of the workforce is set out below.erEhhas been no significant change to the ratio,
since 2013/14.

2015 2014
Highest Earner’s Total Remuneration
(band in £°000) 145-150 140-145
Median Salary (£) 34,530 34,530
Median Total Remuneration Ratio 4.3 4.1
Pensions of Senior Management (Table Audited)
2014/15
Name Real increase in| Total accrued CETV CETV Real
pension and | pension at age 6( at at increase/
related lump and related lump | 31/03/13| 31/03/14| (decrease)
sum at age 60 sum £000s £000s | in CETV
£000s £000s £000s
Executive Members
E P Rooney 0-2.5 pension 10-15 pension 144 178 30
0-2.5 pension 35-40 pension
C Harper (2) 5-10 Iump sum 110-115 lump sum 622 684 42
. 10-15 pension
E McClean 0-2.5pension | 74 o5 | imp sum| 477 533 40
5-10 lump sum
P Cullen

(Appointed Acting 5-10 pension 35-40 pension
Director of Nursing | 15-20 lump sum|110-115 lump sun
01/06/13)

556 668 93

—

(2) The CETV has been recalculated by PensionsdBréor 31/03/14 from 717 to 622 due to a non-supauable
allowance being included.

The value of pension benefits accrued during the i@ calculated as the real increase in pension
multiplied by 20, plus the real increase in any pusum, less the contributions made by the

individual. The real increases exclude increasestd inflation or any increase or decreases due to
a transfer of pension rights.
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A Cash equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the adally assessed capital value of the pension
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a partipgiat in time. The benefits valued are a
member’s accrued benefits in any contingent spsysension payable from the scheme.

A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme, rangement to secure pension benefits in
another pension scheme, or arrangement when a mégealves the scheme or chooses to transfer
their benefits accrued in their former scheme.

The Pension figures shown relate to the benefésttie individual has accrued as a consequence of
their total membership of the pension scheme, ustt their service in a senior capacity to which
disclosure applies.

The CETV figures include the value of any pensi@mdfits in another scheme or arrangement
which the individual has transferred to the HSSsRenScheme. They also include any additional
pension benefits accrued to the member as a restheir purchasing additional years of pension
service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVscateulated within the guidelines and framework
prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of Actusrie

Real increase in CETV - this reflects the increaseETV effectively funded by the employer. It

takes account of the increase of accrued pensi@n tduinflation, contributions paid by the

employee (including the value of any benefits tfamed from another pension scheme or
arrangement) and uses column market valuationrfaéo the start and end of the period.

s
o /
Dr Eddie Rooney
Chief Executive

Date

SO Gt 20/
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REPORT FROM THE GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Governance and Audit Committee (GAC) assig$tHA Board by providing assurance, based
on independent and objective review that effectivernal control arrangements (including risk
management) are in place within the PHA. The GAke$ an integrated view of governance,
encompassing corporate, finance and safety andtyjdahensions.

The GAC comprises four non-executive members of RREA. During 2014/15 there were a

number of changes to membership. Mrs Julie Erskiompleted her term as Chair of the
Committee after the June 2014 meeting, with Mr B@oulter commencing as GAC Chair after the
June 2014 meeting. Mrs Miriam Karp was a membehefGAC until her term as a PHA Non-

Executive member was completed at end of March 20d6Thomas Mahaffy and Alderman Paul

Porter were members of the GAC throughout 2014/15.

The GAC is supported by: Mr Edmond McClean, Directd Operations, PHA; Mr Paul
Cummings, Director of Finance, HSCB and Mrs CatierMcKeown, Head of Internal Audit,
BSO; and their respective staff.

Representatives of the Northern Ireland Audit @ffiand their contracted auditors attend as
required.

Meetings
The GAC met on the following dates during 2014/15:

e 11 June 2014;

* 8 October 2014,

» 10 December 2014,

e 19 February 2015; and
e 15 April 2015.

Attendance

Mrs Julie Erskine (Chair up to end June 2014)
Mr Brian Coulter (Chair from July 2014)

Mrs Miriam Karp (up to March 2015)

Mr Thomas Mahaffy

Alderman Paul Porter

MO ~O

Activities
Key elements of the work of the GAC are listed eldrhe GAC:

» considered the PHA Statutory Accounts, Governarte¢e®ent and draft Annual Report
and recommended their approval to the PHA Board;

* reviewed the External Auditor's Report to Those @ed with Governance and
management’s response, and received regular peogepsrts on, the implementation of
recommendations;
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» considered the PHA Mid-Year Assurance Statementrecoimmended approval to the PHA
Board;

» considered the updated PHA Assurance Framework-201% and recommended approval
to the PHA Board;

« regularly considered and approved the PHA CorpdRak Register;

* had oversight of the process for self-assessmembwoipliance with Controls Assurance
Standards;

» received the annual report on the PHA Gifts andpitabty Register;

» approved the PHA Information Governance Stratedy22019;

» regularly reviewed the Information Governance ActRlan progress report;

« considered and approved the updated PHA BusinessnOay Plan;

» approved the internal audit work plan for 2014/h8 aonsidered the reports on each piece
of work;

» reviewed regular Fraud Liaison Officer reports;

e provided assurance to the PHA Board that the anagebunts would be prepared in
accordance with the relevant statutory regulations;

* received reports on the use of Direct Award ComsrdDACS) within the PHA;

» considered the revised PHA Standing Orders anddBtgnFinancial Instructions and
recommended them to the PHA Board for approval;

* received the PHA Emergency Preparedness and Responsial Report;

* received the Declaration of Assurance from the @afeding Board for Northern Ireland
(SBNI); and

« received the Policy on Appraisal for Medical Praatiers.

The chair of the GAC brings regular verbal and tentreports to the PHA Board; he also has
regular meetings with the Chief Executive and theARChair. The GAC Chair also attends the
DHSSPS regional forum for Audit Committee Chairs.

The GAC looks forward to continuing its work in ZJ16, building on relationships with Executive

Directors, PHA officers and Internal and Externadlifors to ensure robust governance across the
PHA.

B Coulter
Chair
Governance and Audit Committee

lOw‘ \‘WNZ, 20 IS

Date
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PHA BOARD

Andrew Dougal

Andrew Dougal took up the position as Chair of #¢A on 1 June 2015. He
was previously Chief Executive of Northern Irela@test Heart and Stroke
from 1983 and prior to that worked for 10 yeard€niucation. Over the last
25 years, he has been a Non-Executive Directorgdrosations spanning the
private, public and voluntary sectors.

He is currently a Trustee and Chair of the HR Cottemiof the UK Health

Forum. He is a former Trustee and Treasurer of¥oeld Heart Federation
and a former Chair of the Chartered Institute afsBenel and Development
in Northern Ireland.

Mary McMahon

Mary was the PHA’'s Chair from April 2009-Decembdd12 and is a
self-employed social policy researcher.

She was previously coordinator with the Belfastvéteer Support Group and
is a member of Amnesty International (Mid-Down kmfapand the United
Nations Children’s Fund (UNICEF).

Julie Erskine was acting Chair from the start ot®uaber 2014 until the end
of May 2015. Julie is a member of the Northertaimd Social Care Council,
the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’' &apmnuation Committee
and Chair of the Audit Committee for the Norther@dnd Commissioner for
Children and Young People.

- ) * = She is also a member of the Audit Committee forGbenmissioner for Older
’.‘ §5 L 3 People for Northern Ireland, a board member of Pnebation Board for
g R ;‘ﬂ . Northern Ireland and Panel Member of the Northeatahd Medical and
l"‘l_é‘j": %{ €% Dental Training Agency.
. } 0. L ) A
She worked in the healthcare service industry f@r @5 years and held the position of Operations
Director and Support Services Director within afBst-based private healthcare company.

\l

by

42



PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY

ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

Dr Eddie Rooney

=3

ﬂ’é Dr Eddie Rooney is Chief Executive of the PHA. Ptmjoining the PHA, Dr

Rooney served as Equality Director at the Officetfe First Minister and

. Deputy First Minister and as Deputy Secretary a@ tDepartment of
Education from 2004—-2008.

Councillor Billy Ashe

Clir. Billy Ashe has 18 years’ experience as a lloGavernment elected
member. A former Mayor of Carrickfergus Boroughu@oail, he currently
serves as Councillor of Mid and East Antrim Didt@ouncil.

He has been actively involved in a number of comityysrojects, including
those for people suffering from learning difficelsi He currently serves on
the Northern Zone Social Investment Fund.

Brian Coulter

Brian has extensive experience in Healthcare Ragolaas former
Non-Executive Director of the General Dental Couremd current Lay
Member of the General Optical Council and of thertda Tissue Authority.

He is past Chair of the General Optical Councié Begulation and Quality
Improvement Authority, The Northern Ireland Federat of Housing
Associations, Parkview Special School GovernorsthedEastern Health and
Social Services Council.

He had a 23 year career in Health and Social Sssvmllowed by 18 years as
Chief Executive of The Fold Group. His last emphent was as Prisoner Ombudsman for
Northern Ireland.
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Pat Cullen (Interim Director from May 2013—March 2015)

Dr Jeremy Harbison

Dr Carolyn Harper

Pat Cullen was the PHA's Interim Executive Directof Nursing,
Midwifery and Allied Health Professions from MayZ®-March 2015.

During this time Pat had responsibility for providiprofessional advice to
all aspects of commissioning within the Health &witial Care Board and
had lead responsibility for Quality, Safety andi&#iClient Experience
throughout Northern Ireland.

Dr Jeremy Harbison, CB, worked in the Northernadnel Civil Service for
over 25 years at senior level across a range oaibeents, following ten
years working in the health service as a CliniidPologist.

During his civil service career he had senior poliesponsibility in a range
of social areas including health, social care, comity relations, urban
regeneration and social exclusion.

As well as being a Non-Executive Director of theAhe is Pro Chancellor
in the University of Ulster and was Chair of therthern Ireland Social
Care Council from 2001 until 2010.

Dr Harper is the PHA’s Director of Public HealthdaMedical Director.
She was previously Deputy Chief Medical Officettie DHSSPS.

She trained in general practice before moving public health and also

worked as Director of Quality Improvement for theality Improvement
Organisation in California.
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Miriam Karp

Miriam Karp is a former Council Member of the Naeth Ireland Social Care
Council, a ‘Fitness to Practise’ Panellist for théorthern Ireland
Pharmaceutical Society (Statutory Committee), tn#3s to Practise’ Panellist
for the General Medical Council and a member of thBeceptional
Circumstances Body for School Transfer.

She is also a Lay Representative for the Northestarid Medical and Dental
Training Agency. Within the Nursing and MidwiferyoGncil Miriam is also
Chair of the Interim Orders Panel and Chair ofltheestigating Committee.

Thomas Mahaffy

Thomas Mahaffy is employed by UNISON as Policy Gdfi with
responsibility for partnerships, equality, humaghts and social policy issues
within Northern Ireland. He is a board member & Northern Ireland Anti-
Poverty Network and Human Rights Consortium.

Edmond McClean

Edmond McClean is the PHA’s Director of Operatiamsl heads the PHA'’s
\ communications, governance, business planning agalthh intelligence
functions.

His background includes lead Director supporting ithitial development of
Belfast and East Local Commissioning Groups fror@72tb 2009 and from
1997 to 2007 he was Director of Strategic Plan@ing Commissioning with
the Northern Health and Social Services Board.
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Alderman Paul Porter

Alderman Paul Porter was Mayor of Lisburn City Coilifrom 2010 to 2011
and is an elected representative and member ofitngBity Council. He is
currently employed as personal assistant/officeaganfor Jonathan Craig
MLA, undertaking constituency case work, managinddets and staff.

He was formerly employed as a nursing auxiliarygifipson House Hospital/
Lagan Valley Hospital and Seymour Nursing Homejfrd994 to 2000. He
brings to his role on the PHA board his experiegamed on Lisburn City
Council over the past 15 years representing comstis on health issues.

Paul Cummings

Paul Cummings is Director of Finance, HSCB. He pesviously been a
Director of Finance in the South Eastern, Mater Bitster Community and
Hospitals Trusts with over 25 years’ experienceHgmlth and Social Care
and was the national chair of the Healthcare Fimhn®Management
Association in 2002/03, continuing to be an activember.

From May 2013—-May 2014 Paul was seconded to thiéignoef Accountable

Office in the Northern Health and Social Care Trude is also a board
member of Sport Northern Ireland. Paul, or a depwil} attend all Agency

board meetings and have attendance and speakirig. rig

Fionnuala McAndrew

Fionnuala McAndrew is Director of Social Care andil@en, HSCB.
Fionnuala, or a deputy, will attend all PHA boarcatings and have
attendance and speaking rights.
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Related party transactions
The PHA is an arm’s length body of the Departmdntiealth, Social Services and Public Safety
and as such the Department is a related party witlth the PHA has had various material

transactions during the year.

Dr Jeremy Harbison, Non-Executive Director, is Btwancellor of the University of Ulster which
is an organisation likely to do business with tHedHin the future.

During the year, none of the board members, mendfare key management staff or other related
parties has undertaken any material transactiotistive PHA.

Directors’ interests
Details of company directorships or other significanterests held by Directors, where those
Directors are likely to do business, or are pogssigleking to do business with the PHA where this

may conflict with their managerial responsibiliti@se held on a central register.

A copy is available from Edmond McClean, PHA Dimgcbf Operations, and on the PHA website
atwww.publichealth.hscni.net/pha-Board

Further details may be found in note 23 to the aotwithin this document.

Charitable Donations

The Public Health Agency did not make any chargatgnations during the financial year.

./'/-/’7 ‘,-"'-/7
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Dr Eddie Rooney
Chief Executive
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Date
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FOREWORD

These accounts for the period ended 31 March 2@¥8& been prepared in a form determined by the
Department of Health, Social Services and Publitet$aDHSSPS) based on guidance from the
Department of Finance and Personnel’'s FinanciabRieg Manual (FReM) and in accordance with the
requirements of the Health and Social Care (RefdwahNorthern Ireland) 2009.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER RESPONSIBILITIES

Under Health and Social Care (Reform) Act (Northeehand) 2009, the Department of Health, Social
Services and Public Safety has directed the Pitdaith Agency to prepare for each financial year a
statement of accounts in the form and on the lsstiout in the Accounts Direction. The financial
statements are prepared on an accruals basis astdpnuvide a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Public Health Agency, of its incormed expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and
cash flows for the financial year.

In preparing the financial statements the Accognt®dfficer is required to comply with the
requirements of Government Financial Reporting M&flaReM) and in particular to:

- observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Depant of Health, Social Services and
Public Safety including relevant accounting andcldsure requirements, and apply
suitable accounting policies on a consistent basis.

- make judgements and estimates on a reasonaie ba

- state whether applicable accounting standardstasut in FReM have been followed, and
disclose and explain any material departures ifitla@cial statements.

- prepare the financial statements on the going@m basis, unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Public Health Agency will contifueperation.

- keep proper accounting records which disclogh vaasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Public Health Agency.

- pursue and demonstrate value for money in théces the Public Health Agency provides
and in its use of public assets and the resourcesirols.

The Permanent Secretary of the Department of He8tthial Services and Public Safety as Principal
Accounting Officer for Health and Personal Socieih&es Resources in Northern Ireland has designate
Dr Eddie Rooney of the Public Health Agency asAkeounting Officer for the Public Health Agency.
The responsibilities of an Accounting Officer, unding responsibility for the propriety and regulaof

the public finances for which the Accounting Offiage answerable, for keeping proper records and for
safeguarding the Public Health Agency's assetssareout in the Accountable Officer Memorandum,
issued by the Department of Health, Social SenacesPublic Safety.
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CERTIFICATES OF DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, CHAIRMAN AND C HIEF EXECUTIVE

| certify that the annual accounts set out in tharfcial statements and notes to the accountsgpage
67 to 103) which | am required to prepare on bebfatie Public Health Agency have been compiled

from and are in accordance with the accounts aaah¢ial records maintained by the Health & Social

Care Board on behalf of the Public Health Agenay aith the accounting standards and policies for

HSC bodies approved by the Department of Healtbiab8ervices and Public Safety.

Paul Cummings Director of Finance

~

/i ,’, ) / /"‘
/ @zl —é”wmm’?‘l /0/ 6 //5

Date

| certify that the annual accounts set out in tharfcial statements and notes to the accountsgpage
67 to 103) as prepared in accordance with the aleEugrements have been submitted to and duly
approved by the Board.

Andrew Dougal Chairman

/@wwgw%mi o] o8

E P Rooney Chief &ixteve

L
Date /
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THE CERTIFICATE AND REPORT OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL TO THE
NORTHERN IRELAND ASSEMBLY

I certify that | have audited the financial statements of the Public Health Agency for the year
ended 31 March 2015 under the Health and Social Care (Reform) Act (Northern Irefand) 2009.
The financial statements comprise the Statements of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, Financial
Position, Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, Cash Flows, and the related notes. These financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out within them. | have also
audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is described in that report as having
been audited.

Respective responsibilities of the Accounting Officer and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of the Accounting Officer’'s Responsibilities, the
Accounting Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view. My responsibility is to audit, certify and report on
the financial statements in accordance with the Health and Social Care (Reform) Act (Northern
Ireland) 2009. | conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland). Those standards require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of:
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Public Health Agency’s circumstances
and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by the Public Health Agency; and the overall presentation of the
financial statements. In addition | read all the financial and non-financial infermation in the
Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to
identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially
inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by me in the course of performing the audit. If |
become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies | consider the
implications for my certificate.

| am required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the expenditure
and income recorded in the financial statements have been applied to the purposes intended by
the Assembly and the financial transactions recorded in the financial statements conform to the
authorities which govern them.

Opinion on regularity
In my opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income recorded in the financial
statements have been applied to the purposes intended by the Assembly and the financial

transactions recorded in the financial statements confarm to the authorities which govern them.

Opinion on financial statements
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In my opinion:

the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Public Health
Agency’s affairs as at 31 March 2015 and of the net expenditure, cash flows and changes
in taxpayers’ equity for the year then ended; and

the financiai statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Health
and Social Care (Reform) Act (Northern Ireland) 2009 and Department of Heaith, Social
Services and Public Safety directions issued thereunder.

Opinion on other matters

In my opinion:

the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in
accordance with Department of Health, Social Services and Public Safety directions
made under the Health and Social Care (Reform) Act (Northern Ireland) 2009; and

the information given in the Annual Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Matters on which | report by exception

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if, in my
opinion:

Report

adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

the financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not
in agreement with the accounting records; or

I have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit; or

the Governance Statement does not reflect compliance with Department of Finance and
Personnel’s guidance.

I have no observations to make on these financial statements.

KT Pen
Ki Donnelly
Comptroller and Auditor General
Northern Ireland Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

877 1EU

2 ﬂ June 2015
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1. Introduction / Scope of Responsibility

As Accounting Officer and Chief Executive of the RKH have responsibility for maintaining a
sound system of internal governance that suppbesathievement of the organisation’s policies,
aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding the pulblicls and assets for which | am responsible in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned tobgnéhe Department of Health, Social Services
and Public Safety.

As Chief Executive, | exercise my responsibility bgsuring that an adequate system for the
identification, assessment and management of sskniplace. | have in place a range of
organisational controls, commensurate with officemsrent assessment of risk, designed to ensure
the efficient and effective discharge of PHA busee accordance with the law and Departmental
direction. Every effort is made to ensure thatdbgctives of the PHA are pursued in accordance
with the recognised and accepted standards ofgabfninistration.

A range of processes and systems (including SLwesentation on PHA Board, Governance and
Audit Committee and regular formal meetings betwsemnior officers) are in place to support the
close working between the PHA and its partner asgdions, primarily the Health and Social Care
Board (HSCB) and the Business Services Organis@&0), as they provide essential services to
the PHA (including finance) and in taking forwaletthealth and wellbeing agenda.

Systems are also in place to support the intetioalship between the PHA and the DHSSPS,
through regular meetings and submitting regulaomsp

2. Compliance with Corporate Governance Best Practice

The PHA applies the principles of good practic&€€orporate Governance and continues to further
strengthen its governance arrangements. The Plg4 this by undertaking continuous assessment
of its compliance with Corporate Governance bestime by internal and external audits and
through the operation of the Governance and Audin@ittee, with regular reports to the PHA
Board.

The PHA Board has also completed a second seléss®mnt against the DHSSPS Arms Length
Bodies (ALB) Board Self-Assessment Toolkit. Ovethls shows that the PHA Board functions
well, and identifies progress from the previousryeAn action plan has been developed to take
forward further improvements.

Arrangements are in place for an annual declaraifonterests by all PHA Board Members; the
register is publically available on the PHA websit®embers are also required to declare any
potential conflict of interests at Board or comestimeetings, and withdraw from the meeting while
the item is being discussed and voted on.

3. Governance Framework

The key organisational structures which suppordievery of good governance in the PHA are:
* PHA Board;
* Governance and Audit Committee; and
* Remuneration and Terms of Service Committee.
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The PHA Board is comprised of a Non-Executive Chegwven Non-Executive members, the Chief
Executive and three Executive Directors. The PH#aI€s term of office ended 30 November
2014.An Acting Chair was in place while the Pulfiigpointments Unit recruited a new Chair. The
new chair took up post on 1 June 2015. As a réiseie have only been 6 Non-Executive members
between December 2014 and March 2015. The PHAMBw&ets regularly, usually monthly with
the exception of July. The Board sets the stratdigection for the PHA within the overall policies
and priorities of the HSC, monitors performanceim@gjaobjectives, ensures effective financial
stewardship, ensures that high standards of caggovernance are maintained, ensures systems in
place to appoint, appraise and remunerate senaruéixes, ensures effective public engagement
and ensures that robust and effective arrangememetsin place for clinical and social care
governance and risk management. During 2014/1%Hws Board met on eleven occasions (plus
one Special Board meeting to consider the AnnugloReand Accounts). All meetings were
quorate.

The Governance and Audit Committee’s (GAC) purpsse give an assurance to the PHA Board
and Accounting Officer on the adequacy and effectass of the PHA'’s system of internal control.
The GAC has an integrated governance role enconmgafssancial governance, clinical and social

care governance and organisational governancef alhich are underpinned by risk management
systems. The GAC meets at least quarterly ancethyrcomprises four Non-Executive Directors

supported by the PHA Director of Operations, HSGB&or of Finance and representatives from
Internal and External Audit. During 2014/15 the GAt@t on five occasions. All meetings were

quorate.

The Remuneration and Terms of Service Committeeasagvthe PHA Board about appropriate

remuneration and terms of service for the Chiefddkge and other senior executives subject to the
direction of the DHSSPS. The Committee also owrdbe proper functioning of performance

appraisal systems, the appropriate contractuahgeraents for all staff as well as monitoring a

remuneration strategy that reflects national agesgnand Departmental Policy and equality

legislation. The Committee meets at least onceye§emonths. During 2014/15 the Committee

met on two occasions. All meetings were quorate.

4. Business Planning and Risk Management

Business planning and risk management is at thg bégovernance arrangements to ensure that
statutory obligations and ministerial prioritie® guroperly reflected in the management of business
at all levels within the organisation.

The PHA has a five year Corporate Strategy for 2Q015 setting out its purpose, vision, values
and strategic goals. An Annual Business Planepgmed taking account of DHSSPS guidance and
priorities as well as PHA priorities for the yedread. The plan is developed with input from the
PHA Board and staff from all Directorates, takingg@unt of engagement with wider stakeholders
throughout the year. The PHA Annual Business Rla2014/15 was approved by the PHA Board
on 23 January 2014 and by the DHSSPS on 26 Mar&h.2@Regular performance monitoring
reports are brought to the Board.

The PHAs Risk Management Strategy and Policy wased and approved by the Governance and
Audit Committee on 10 April 2014. This documenpkoitly outlines the PHA risk management
process which is a 5 stage approach — risk ideatifin, risk assessment, risk appetite, addressing
risk and recording and reviewing risk, as follows:
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Stage 1 - Risk Identification

Risks are identified in a number of ways and atealkls within the organisation (corporately, by
Directorate and by individual staff members). Riglan present as external factors which impact
on the organisation but which the organisation imaye limited control over, or operational which
concern the service provided and the resource®pses available and utilised.

Organisation risk is related to the PHA’s objectii@s detailed in the Corporate Strategy and
Annual Business Plan). Each risk identified isrelated to at least one of the corporate objectives
Risks are also aligned with the relevant perforneaaued assurance dimensions as identified in the
DHSSPS Framework Document.

Stage 2 - Risk Assessment

After risks are identified they are assessed tabdish:
* The impact that the risk would have on the busiséssild it occur; and
* The likelihood of the risk materialising.

The PHA is committed to adhering to best practicthe identification and treatment of risks. The
AS/NZS 4360:2004 standard (adopted by DHSSPS) wimcbrporates a “5x5” Risk Matrix is
used, along with a Risk Analysis Tools Impact Taklech gives detail of the impact definitions to
be used when assessing each identified risk.

Stage 3 - Risk Appetite

The PHA carefully considers its risk appetite — tlee extent of exposure to risk that is judged
tolerable and justifiable. The PHA recognises th& operating in an environment where safety,
quality and viability are paramount and are of nalittenefit to service users, stakeholders and the
organisation alike. Consequently, and subjectotatrols and assurances being in place, the PHA
will generally accept manageable risks which ar@wative and which predict clearly identifiable
benefits, but not those where the risk of harm dwease outcomes to service users, the PHA’s
business viability or reputation is significantligh and may outweigh any benefits to be gained.
Risk appetite is built into the risk assessmentgss as outlined above.

Stage 4 - Addressing the Risk

Whilst there are four traditional responses to asgsing risk (terminate, tolerate, transfer and}rea

in practice within the PHA the vast majority ofkssare managed via the “Treat” or “Tolerate”

route, both of which are underpinned by the ides#ifon of an action plan to reduce and ultimately
eliminate the risk.

Stage 5 - Recording and Reviewing Risk
Within the PHA the risk management process is aarand evidenced through the maintenance
of Directorate and Corporate level Risk Registers.

To ensure the robustness of the PHA'’s system efnat control, fully functioning Risk Registers
at both directorate and corporate levels are resteand updated on a quarterly basis, ensuring that
risks are managed effectively and efficiently to emd®HA’s corporate objectives and to
continuously improve the quality of services.

Processes are established within each Directorabliag risks to be identified, controls and/or
gaps in controls highlighted and, where relevattipa to be taken to mitigate the risk. Directors
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and senior officers also identify risks which raguio be escalated to the Corporate Risk Register.
The Directorate and Corporate Risk Registers afiewed and updated on a quarterly basis.

The Director of Operations is the PHA Executive Bbanember with responsibility for risk
management. The Corporate Risk Register is redewarterly by the Agency Management Team
(AMT) and Governance and Audit Committee (GAC).eThinutes of the GAC are brought to the
following PHA Board meeting, and the Chair of théA@G also provides a verbal update on
governance issues including risk. The Corporagk Riegister is brought to a PHA Board meeting
at least annually.

During 2014/15 guidance and support was providestati who are actively involved in reviewing
and co-ordinating the review of the Directorate &uporate Risk Registers. A system has been
established whereby the Senior Operations Managetawith the planning and project managers
supporting each Directorate and Division at the efdeach quarter to ensure feedback and
consistency in the review of the Risk Registers, tanshare and learn from good practice.

All staff are required to complete the PHA risk ragament e-learning programme. In addition,
staff have also been provided with other releveaihing including fire, health, safety and security
and fraud awareness.

All policies and procedures in respect of risk ng@amaent and related areas are available to all staff
through the PHA intranet (Connect) site.

5. Information Risk

The PHA has robust measures in place to manageantcbl information risks. The Director of
Operations as Senior Information Risk Owner (SIR®)the focus for the management of
information risk at board level. The Director aftiic Health as the Personal Data Guardian (PDG)
has responsibility for ensuring that the PHA prgesssatisfy the highest practical standards for
handling personal data. Assistant Directors asrinition Asset Owners (IAQ’s) are responsible
for managing and addressing risks associated wéhnformation assets within their function and
provide assurance to the SIRO on the managemehbvsé assets.

The PHA'’s Information Governance Steering GroupS@3 has the primary role of leading the
development and implementation of the Informatiorov&@nance Framework across the
organisation, including ensuring that action plansing from Internal and External Audit reports
and controls assurance standards assessmentsogresged. The Group is chaired by the SIRO
and membership includes all the IAOs, PDG, a Noaddkve Board member and relevant
governance staff. The IGSG meets quarterly, aodiges a report to the GAC.

The PHA’'s Information Governance Strategy (incogpiog the Information Governance

Framework) 2015-2019 sets out the framework to menstat the PHA meets its obligations in

respect of information governance, embedding thitha heart of the organisation and driving
forward improvements in information governance witthe PHA. The Strategy covers the four
year period from 2015 to 2019 and is supportedrbwal Action Plans setting out how it will be

implemented. Alongside this a range of policied @nocedures are in place, including Records
Management, IT Security and Data Protection.

58



PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY

ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The PHA ‘Connect’ intranet site provides staff wihsy access to the latest PHA policies, news
and resources. Through the use of this site th& &t$ures that all staff have access to information
governance policies and procedures.

Information asset registers have been developeat aea kept under review. Information risks are
incorporated in the Corporate and Directorate FRglgisters and control measures are identified
and reviewed as required.

The PHA was involved in the development of a HS@ewinformation governance e-learning
programme, incorporating Freedom of InformationteDRrotection, Records Management and IT
Security during 2012/13. This programme was roked to all staff within the PHA during
2013/14 and 2014/15. Uptake of training is momitbby the IGSG.

6. Assurance

The Governance and Audit Committee provides anrassa to the Board of the PHA on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the system of inteomdrols in operation within the PHA. It assists
the PHA Board in the discharge of its functionspogviding an independent and objective review
of:

» All control systems;

* The information provided to the PHA Board,

* Compliance with law, guidance and Code of Condndt@ode of Accountability; and

» Governance processes within the PHA Board.

Internal and External Audit have a vital role iroyiding assurance on the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. The GAC receives resgeand monitors reports from Internal and
External Audit. Internal and External Audit repratatives are also in attendance at all GAC
meetings.

The Chair of the GAC reports to the PHA Board aegular basis on the work of the Committee.

The PHA Board also receives regular assurancesighrtéhe financial and performance reports
brought to it by the HSCB Director of Finance ariAPDirector of Operations.

The PHA Assurance Framework, which is reviewed éwjearly by the GAC and annually by the
PHA Board, sets out a systematic and comprehemsperting framework to the Board and its
committees.

The PHA continues to ensure that data quality aseer processes are in place across the range of
data coming to the PHA Board. Where gaps are iitksht the PHA proactively seeks to address
these, for example by the development and regudaiew of the Programme Expenditure
Monitoring System (PEMS) to ensure comprehensivkrahust information.

Information presented to the PHA Board to suppedigsion making, is firstly presented to and
approved by the Agency Management Team (AMT) aedGhief Executive, as part of the quality
assurance process. Relevant officers are alsttendance at Board meetings when appropriate, to
ensure that members have the opportunity to crgdl@mformation presented.
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Controls Assurance Standards

The PHA assessed its compliance with the applicabletrGlsnAssurance Standards which were

defined by the Department and against which a @egfrerogress is expected in 2015/16.

The PHA achieved the following levels of compliafioe2014/15.

Standard DHSS&PS Expected | PHA Level | Verified by
Level of Compliance of Internal
Compliance Audit
Buildings, land, plant and non-medical 75% - 99% (Substantive) 83% v
equipment
Decontamination of medical devices 75% - 99% (Sastiste) N/A -
Emergency Planning 75% - 99% (Substantive) 95% -
Environmental Cleanliness 75% - 99% (Substantjve) N/A -
Environment Management 75% - 99% (Substantjve) 83% -
Financial Management(Core Standard) 75% - 99% (Substantive) 87% v
Fire safety 75% - 99% (Substantive) 93% -
Fleet and Transport Management 75% - 99% (Subsgnti N/A -
Food Hygiene 75% - 99% (Substantive) N/A -
Governance(Core Standard) 75% - 99% (Substantive) 89% v
Health & Safety 75% - 99% (Substantive) 90% -
Human Resources 75% - 99% (Substantive) 92% -
Infection Control 75% - 99% (Substantive) N/A -
Information Communication Technology 75% - 99% (Sahtive) 85% -
Management of Purchasing and Supply  75% - 99% (Snthse) 88% -
Medical Devices and Equipment | 75% - 99% (Substantive) N/A -
Management
Medicines Management 75% - 99% (Substantive) N/A -
Information Management 75% - 99% (Substantive) 80% -
Research Governance 75% - 99% (Substantive) 84% v
Risk Management(Core Standard) | 75% - 99% (Substantive) 87% v
Security Management 75% - 99% (Substantive) 88% -
Waste Management 75% - 99% (Substantive) 86% -
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7.  Sources of Independent Assurance

The PHA obtains Independent Assurance from theviellg sources:

* Internal Audit; and
+ External Audit — the Northern Ireland Audit Office.

Internal Audit
The PHA utilises an Internal Audit function whicperates to defined standards and whose work is
informed by an analysis of risk to which the bodyekposed and annual audit plans are based on

this analysis.

In 2014/15 Internal Audit reviewed the followingssgms:

System reviewed Assurance received
Financial Review Satisfactory
Procurement and Contract Management Satisfactory

Management of Health and Social Wellbeing Contracts | Satisfactory (management)
Limited (procurement)

Risk Management Satisfactory
Research and Development Satisfactory
Performance Management Satisfactory
Information Governance Satisfactory

Internal audit also carried out the year end CdsitAssurance verification and a mid-year and end
of year follow up reports.

In her annual report, the Internal Auditor reportedt there is a satisfactory system of internal
control designed to meet PHA'’s objectiveklowever, two priority on@veaknesses in control were

identified in the PHA Management of Health and &btVellbeing Contracts Audit and one in the
Procurement and Contract Management Audit. Recordai®ns to address these control
weaknesses have been or are being implemented mgg®a@ent.

In particular the PHA continues to take robust@wito address the weaknesses identified in the
audit of the Management of the Health and Sociallmg Contracts. This has included the
regular meeting of the PHA Procurement Board (etaby the Chief Executive), which monitors
progress against the procurement plan. The PHAiraes to work with BSO Procurement and
Logistics Service (PALS) and Legal Directorate toogress PHA procurement of health
improvement services as well as participating anrtgional HSC Social Care Procurement Groups.
Of the two priority one recommendations one haslfelty and the other partially implemented at
31 March 2015.

The one priority one finding in the Procurement @mhtract Management Audit related to a Single

Tender Action; of the two priority one recommendasi with an implementation date of 31 March
2015 or earlier one has been fully implemented,thadther partially implemented.
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The Internal Audit Follow Up report on previousdmntal Audit Recommendations, issued on 2
April 2015, found that of those recommendationdaih implementation date of 31 March 2015 or
earlier, 84% were fully implemented, a further 158artially implemented and 1% not yet
implemented. The one recommendation (priority téha)t has not yet been implemented relates to
the setting and monitoring of SMART objectives R&D projects. Implementation has been
delayed due to staff vacancies, with progress nawipated by July 2015.

External Audit

In the Report to Those Charged with Governance RWG) for the year ended 31 March 2014,
the Comptroller and Auditor General to the NI Asbfngave an unqualified audit opinion on the
financial statements and the regularity opiniorthe PHA’s accounts, with four priority 1 issues
being raised.

In summary the four priority 1 recommendations tezlao:

* Reliance on third party organisations (BSO)

» Payroll Information provided by BSO

e Shared Service Centre (BSO)

* Supplier amendments to Standing Data (BSO)

In summary, all of these recommendations referoe8hared Services provided to the PHA under
the Service Level Agreement (SLA) held with the iBess Services Organisation (BSO). External
Audit noted that ‘These errors have resulted initamddhl work for HSCB staff on behalf of PHA
and for the auditors. While these errors wereifredtprior to the draft accounts being prepared, i
increases staff workload rather than improvingdfiiency of the process.’

The PHA, via the Director of Finance of the HSCBdhbeen pressing the BSO to set up an
appropriate Customer engagement framework to erisatg@rogress on all issues highlighted in the

Report to Those Charged with Governance is madiolrember 2014 a Customer Forum was set
up. This Forum, while in its infancy, has proveehéficial in resolving issues as highlighted by

both the Internal and External Auditors. In aduhfi significant progress has been made on the
development of the detailed Service Level Agreemfemt Shared Services and the resultant

performance monitoring framework.

While there remain areas for improvement, managemamsider that progress has been made on
all recommendations, which are monitored by thee@or of Finance and reported to each meeting
of the Governance and Audit Committee during 2034/1

8. Review of Effectiveness of the System of Internal @&ernance

As Accounting Officer, | have responsibility foretlieview of effectiveness of the system of internal
governance. My review of the effectiveness ofdigtem of internal governance is informed by the
work of the Internal Auditors and the executive agars within the PHA who have responsibility for
the development and maintenance of the internalraoframework, and comments made by the
External Auditors in their management letter antdepotreports. | have been advised on the
implications of the result of my review of the efigeness of the system of internal control by the
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Governance and Audit Committee and a plan to addmsaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement to the system is in place.

9. Internal Governance Divergences
Update on prior year control issues which continteebe considered control issues

Accommodation

The new agents for the Ormeau Baths facility arekimg well with the PHA, ensuring that any
issues are dealt with promptly. PHA and PCC camstito be accommodated in Ormeau Baths
while SBNI have moved out to The Beeches (HSC Lesdmiie Centre) to meet their requirement for
increased space.

During 2013/14 and early 2014/15 PHA staff workeithwHealth Estates to finalise the business
case for new accommodation to resolve the continpnoblems, especially in respect of 4th floor
Linenhall Street and Alexander House with the nundfestaff significantly in excess of capacity,
with consequent problems including noise, lack @&etings space and challenges regarding data
confidentiality. While a few staff have been atdemove to the desks in Ormeau Baths freed by
the SBNI move, this has by no means resolved tbielgm. Rather, these issues continue to have a
negative impact on PHA staff, resources and howPtHA carries out its business.

While significant progress was made towards implaaiten of the business case preferred option,
the building was taken off the market at the lastute in August 2014. Advice was sought from
DHSSPS Asset and Estate Management Branch (AEMB), aenfirmation in January 2015 that
PHA was not to be included in wider public sectaqusitions and moves within 2014/15.
Therefore a new search for alternative accommoaasorequired along with the subsequent
revision of the business case. PHA will continmevbrk with the AEMB and DFP Health Projects
along with Land and Property Services (LPS) anddtier regional organisations (particularly
HSCB and BSO), to progress this.

This has also resulted in the PHA being unableaitate Alexander House as expected by the end
of 2014/15, and therefore a renewed licence agreemmeequired. Advice has been sought from
AEMB and a Strategic Outline Case (SOC) has be&msted to seek approval to renew the
license to February 2017 (in line with the end daftehe Ormeau Baths lease, to allow a fuller
examination and business case for an accommodsdlation for all PHA Belfast pressures).

The PHA is also facing accommodation pressuresnra@h. As the lease for Anderson House was
due to end July 2014, PHA initially submitted anGSid February 2013 seeking approval to renew;
PHA continues to seek advice and work through gsdriom AEMB, working with LPS and other
HSC organisations, to progress the SOC, and reaotugon.

While the two SOCs have not yet been approved byCtHSSPS, PHA has not renewed either
licence or lease. However, the PHA is requiredptovide accommodation for its staff and
therefore cannot close either office until suitableEcommodation is identified, approved and if
necessary fitted out. The PHA continues to workhwbHSSPS, LPS, DLS and other HSC
organisations as relevant, to resolve queries &tairoapproval to renew the licence and lease or
identify alternative suitable accommodation, askjyias possible.
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Management of Contracts with the Community and Voluntary Sector

While the 2014/15 Internal Audit report on the ngeraent of health and social wellbeing
improvement contracts provided satisfactory assg@aon the system of internal controls over
PHA’s management of health and social wellbeingtremts, it provided limited assurance
specifically in relation to procurement of healtidasocial wellbeing contracts.

The report acknowledged that significant work haerb undertaken to develop a plan for the
procurement of health and social wellbeing improgetncontracts, however at the time of audit
fieldwork, no procurement exercises had been Sedliand contracts awarded. Since that time
however implementation of the Procurement Plangdragressed. Twelve tenders have now been
issued and most of these contracts are due to capenitween June and July 2015. A number of
tenders have been issued, with contracts to bedagaturing April and May 2015. The next phase
of tenders is currently being developed.

The PHA’'s Procurement Plan is a live document, sndontinually revised to ensure that all
contracts are included and the timelines set dneeaable given the significant resources required
to manage each Tender. Progress against the Bnoeat Plan is monitored by the PHA
Procurement Board.

PHA also continues to work closely with BSO Prooueat and Logistics Service (PALS) and
Directorate of Legal Services (DLS) to develop appiate social care procurement processes and
documentation. This work is overseen by the PHécBrement Board.

It is recognised however that social care procurgnsea new area for the wider HSC, and the PHA
continues to work closely with colleagues in HSBB30 and the Trusts to develop and put in place
appropriate and proportionate regional processdsnket the new procurement regulations.

Quality, Quantity and Financial Controls

PHA continues to face difficulties in commissioniagd supporting services provided to the
population of Northern Ireland in an environmentend demand for these services continues to
increase whilst the budget available for commigsigithem remains constrained.

The PHA has taken action and continues to develapspand associated efficiencies for 2015/16
which will contribute towards maintaining the intiétg of the services that it currently commissions
along with ensuring that additional priorities itifad continue to be implemented and progressed.

Business Services Transformation Project/Shared Seces

The Business Services Transformation Program (BSm#dduced new HSC wide computer
systems in 2012/13 and began implementation ofeésh@ervices for Accounts Payable, Receivable
and Payroll in 2013/14.

Post implementation, significant system difficudtibad been encountered over a range of areas,
which resulted in the Internal Auditor providingmited assurance and the External Auditor
providing priority 1 recommendations in relation tiee associated financial processes. The
associated action plans have now been sufficigmtigressed to a ‘business as usual’ status within
the PHA. Therefore due to the continued improvemebserved during 2014/15, the BSTP risk
had been removed from the PHA Corporate Risk Remgist
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However, the Internal Auditor has provided limiteskurances to BSO for one element of Accounts
Payable Shared Services, relating to duplicate paysnand Payroll Shared Services in 2014/15.
While the duplicate payment issue has subsequba#n resolved for the PHA, BSO have advised
that the payroll recommendation is likely to be iempented during the early part of 2015/16. The
PHA is therefore concerned that the control isdughlighted in Payroll Shared Services could
have an adverse impact on the PHA, and therefole continue to monitor progress and
developments in this area.

Identification of new issues in the current yearng@luding issues identified in the mid-year
assurance statement) and anticipated future issues.

Reduction in the PHA Management and AdministrationBudget

The 2015/16 allocation for PHA administration haet reduced by £2.8m, representing 15% of
the administration budget. The reduction is resnirand is part of the collective Departmental
response to address the overall DHSSPS funding @dps will have a significant and serious
impact on how the PHA undertakes its business.

The PHA will strive to make as many savings as ipbssn areas that will have the least negative
impact on the essential work of the organisation.

The PHA will continue to work closely with DHSSPS.

10. Conclusion

The PHA has a rigorous system of accountabilityclwhican rely on as Accounting Officer to form
an opinion on the probity and use of public funds, detailed in Managing Public Money NI
(MPMNI).

Further to considering the accountability framewavikhin the PHA and in conjunction with

assurances given to me by the Head of Internal tAu@m content that the PHA has operated a
sound system of internal governance during theode2014/15

s =
C// //)//{ P ey S «)

Dr Eddie Rooney
Chief Executive

Date

O Aere Zors

o

65



PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

66



PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY

STATEMENT of COMPREHENSIVE NET EXPENDITURE for the year ended 31 March 2015

201¢ 201¢
NOTE £000s £000s
Expenditure
Staff cost 31 (17,186 (17,022
Depreciatiol 4.C (131 (97)
Other Expenditure 4.C (49,949 (46,311
(67,266) (63,430)
Income
Income from activities 5.1 477 153
Other Income 5.2 681 821
Deferred income 5.3 0 0
1,158 974
Net Expenditure (66,108) (62,456)
Revenue Resource Limit (RRL) Issued (to)
Belfast HSC Trust (11,924) (11,375)
South Eastern HSC Trust (3,539) (3,247)
Southern HSC trust (5,458) (4,950)
Northern HSC Trust (7,302) (6,490)
Western HSC Trust (6,131) (5,793)
NIMDTA (133) 0
Total RRL issued (34,487) (31,855)
Total Commissioner resources utilised (100,595) (94,311)
RRL received from DHSSPS 25.1 100,738 94,469
Surplus against RRL 143 158
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENDITURE
2015 2014
NOTE £000s £000s
Items that will not be reclassified to net operatig costs:
Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plamd a
equipment 6.1/10/6.2/10 0 2
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENDITURE
for the year ended 31 March 2015 (66,108) (62,454)

The notes on pages 71 - 103 form part of theseuatso
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Non Current Asset:

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Financial assets

Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

Total Non Current Assets

Current Assets

Assets classified as held for sale
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

Intangible current assets
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total Current Assets

Total Asset:

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables
Other liabilities

Intangible current liabilities

Provisions

Total Current Liabilities

Non Current Assets plus/less Net Current Asse:

/ Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities
Provisions

Other payables > 1 yr
Financial liabilities

Total Non Current Liabilities
Assets less Liabilitie
Taxpayers' Equity

Revaluation reserve
SoCNE Reserve

The notes on pages 71 to 103 form part of these accounts.

@W@wﬂl/ﬂl

(Chief Executive) /fh ’/47’ o

Signed
(Chairman)

Signed

NOTE

6.1/6.2
7.17.2
8.0
12.0
12.0

9.0
11.0
12.0
12.0
12.0
8.1
13.0

14.0
14.0
14.0
16.0

16.0
14.0
8.0

>

2015 2014
£000¢ £000: £000¢ £000¢
377 460
141 60
0 0
0 0
0 0
51¢& 52(
0 0
0 0
812 698
150 388
0 0
0 0
276 217
1,23¢ 1,30:
1,75¢€ 1,82
(7,014) (9,476)
0 0
0 0
(10) (10
7,024 9,486
_ (5268) (7,663)
0 0
0 0
0 0
0 0
(5,268 (7,663
36 36
(5,304) 0 (7,699) 0
(5,268 (7,663
Date )
IS0 I 1$
Date
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PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY

STATEMENT of CASH FLOWS for the year ended 31 March2015

2015 2014

NOTE £000s £000s
Cash flows from operating activities
Net expenditure after interest (66,108) (62,456)
Adjustments for non cash costs 165 128
decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 124 (264)
(decrease)/increase in trade payables (2,462) (712)
Less movements in payables relating to items n&gipg through the SOCNE
Movements in payables relating to the purchaseafqrty, plant
and equipment 233 (110)
Movement in payables relating to the purchase tahigibles (23) 0
Net cash outflow from operating activities (68,072) (63,414)
Cash flows from investing activities
(Purchase of property, plant & equipment) 6 (281) 1131
(Purchase of intangible assets) 7 (76) 0
Net cash outflow from investing activities (357) (131)
Cash flows from financing activities
Grant in aid 68,487 63,493
Net financing 68,487 63,493
Net increase (decrease) in cash & cash equivaleinsthe period 59 (52)
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the pied 13 217 269
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the period 13 276 217

The notes on pages 71 to 103 form part of theseuents.
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STATEMENT of CHANGES in TAXPAYERS' EQUITY

for the year ended 31 March 2015

Balance at 31 March 2013

Changes in Taxpayers Equity 2013/14
Grant from DHSSPS

(Comprehensive expenditure for the year)
Non cash charges - auditors remuneration

Balance at 31 March 2014

Changes in Taxpayers Equity 2014/15
Grant from DHSSPS

(Comprehensive expenditure for the year)
Non cash charges - auditors remuneration

Balance at 31 March 2015

NOTE

The notes on pages 71 -103 form part of theseusts.
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SoCNE Revaluation
Reserve Reserve Total
£000s £000s £000s
(8,757) 34 (8,723)
63,493 0 63,493
(62,456) 2,484)
21 21
(7,699) 36 (7,663)
68,487 0 68,487
(66,108) 6,1(88)
16 16
(5,304) 36 (5,268)




PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

11

1.2

1.3

Authority

These accounts have been prepared in a form dagsnby the Department of Health, Social
Services and Public Safety based on guidance frenDepartment of Finance and Personnel’s
Financial Reporting manual (FreM) and in accordamitie the requirements of Article 90(2)(a) of
the Health and Personal Social Services (Northeztanid) Order 1972 No 1265 (NI 14) as
amended by Article 6 of the Audit and AccountabpiliNorthern Ireland) Order 2003 and the
Health and Social Care (Reform) Act (Northern Inelp2009. The accounting policies follow
IFRS to the extent that it is meaningful and appedp to the Public Health Agency (PHA).
Where a choice of accounting policy is permitté@, accounting policy which has been judged
to be most appropriate to the particular circumstarof the PHA for the purpose of giving a
true and fair view has been selected. The PHA'soaating policies have been applied

consistently in dealing with items considered matein relation to the accounts, unless
otherwise stated.

Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the tédtoast convention modified to account
for the revaluation of property, plant and equipmen

Currency and Rounding

These accounts are presented in UK Pounds sterlihg.figures in the accounts are shown to
the nearest £1,000.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment assets comprise Lahdldings, Dwellings, Transport
Equipment, Plant & Machinery, Information Technotand Furniture & Fittings.

Recognition
Property, plant and equipment must be capitalised

e it is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

e it is probable that future economic benefits Wadlw to, or service potential will be supplied
to, the PHA,

e it is expected to be used for more than one firgduyear;

e the cost of the item can be measured reliably; and

e the item has cost of at least £5,000; or

e collectively, a number of items have a cost deast £5,000 and individually have a cost of
more than £1,000, where the assets are functiomaderdependent, they had broadly
simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipatedwe $ianultaneous disposal dates and are
under single managerial control; or

e items form part of the initial equipping and segtup cost of a new unit, irrespective of
their individual or collective cost.
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1.4

On initial recognition property, plant and equipmeme measured at cost including any
expenditure such as installation, directly attréilé¢ to bringing them into working condition.
Items classified as “under construction” are recegph in the Statement of Financial Position
to the extent that money has been paid or a liglhis been incurred.

Valuation of Land and Buildings

The PHA does not hold any land and buildings. piemises occupied by the PHA are leased
by the Department of Health, Social Services artdi®&afety on behalf of the PHA.

Short Life Assets

Short life assets are not indexed. Short lifeaBned as a useful life of up to and including
5 years. Short life assets are carried at deegtisstoric cost as this is not considered to be
materially different from fair value and are depaged over their useful life.

Where estimated life of fixtures and equipment exicé years, suitable indices will be applied
each year and depreciation will be based on indarealint.

Revaluation Reserve

An increase arising on revaluation is taken torwaluation reserve except when it reverses an
impairment for the same asset previously recogniseapenditure, in which case it is credited
to expenditure to the extent of the decrease puslyccharged there. A revaluation decrease is
recognised as an impairment charged to the revafuaéserve to the extent that there is a
balance on the reserve for the asset and, thergafiexpenditure.

Depreciation

No depreciation is provided on freehold land silac®l has unlimited or a very long established
useful life. Items under construction are not de@ted until they are commissioned. Properties
that are surplus to requirements and which meedéimition of “non-current assets held for
sale” are also not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation is charged to write off tiwsts or valuation of property, plant and
equipment and similarly, amortisation is applied intangible non-current assets, less any
residual value, over their estimated useful livesa manner that reflects the consumption of
economic benefits or service potential of the ass&ssets held under finance leases are also
depreciated over the lower of their estimated uskfes and the terms of the lease. The
estimated useful life of an asset is the period evi@ch the ALB expects to obtain economic
benefits or service potential from the asset. Emtidah useful lives and residual values are
reviewed each year end, with the effect of any gkarrecognised on a prospective basis. The
following asset lives have been used.

Asset Type Asset Life

IT assets 3 —10 years
Intangible assets 3 — 10 years
Other Equipment 3 — 15 years
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15

1.6

1.7

Impairment loss

If there has been an impairment loss due to a genkange in prices, the asset is written down
to its recoverable amount, with the loss chargethéorevaluation reserve to the extent that
there is a balance on the reserve for the asset thadeafter, to expenditure within the
Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure (SoCNE)he impairment is due to the
consumption of economic benefits the full amounthaf impairment is charged to the SOCNE
and an amount up to the value of the impairmetiiénrevaluation reserve is transferred to the
SoCNE Reserve. Where an impairment loss subsdyuenerses, the carrying amount of the
asset is increased to the revised estimate ofet®verable amount but capped at the amount
that would have been determined had there beenitied impairment loss. The reversal of the
impairment loss is credited firstly to the SOCNEthe extent of the decrease previously
charged there and thereafter to the revaluaticrves

Subsequent expenditure

Where subsequent expenditure enhances an asseidhbieyoriginal specification, the directly
attributable cost is capitalised. Where subseqaegpénditure which meets the definition of
capital restores the asset to its original speifom, the expenditure is capitalised and any
existing carrying value of the item replaced istign-out and charged to operating expenses.

The overall useful life of buildings takes accoohthe fact that different components of those
buildings have different useful lives. This ensutigat depreciation is charged on those assets

at the same rate as if separate components haditestified and depreciated at different
rates.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets includes any of the followingdhesoftware, licences, trademarks, websites,
development expenditure, Patents, Goodwill andngitde Assets under Construction.
Software that is integral to the operating of haaky for example an operating system, is
capitalised as part of the relevant item of propgstant and equipment. Software that is not
integral to the operation of hardware, for examgbplication software, is capitalised as an
intangible asset. Expenditure on research is apitalised: it is recognised as an operating
expense in the period in which it is incurred.emtlly-generated assets are recognised if, and
only if, all of the following have been demonstdite

e the technical feasibility of completing the intélnlg asset so that it will be available for use;

e the intention to complete the intangible assetusdlit;

e the ability to sell or use the intangible asset;

e how the intangible asset will generate probabler&ieconomic benefits or service potential;

e the availability of adequate technical, finan@atl other resources to complete the
intangible asset and sell or use it; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditutelaitable to the intangible asset during its
development.
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Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets withogigal substance, which are capable of sale
separately from the rest of the PHA'’s business lickvarise from contractual or other legal
rights. Intangible assets are considered to hduata life. They are recognised only when it
is probable that future economic benefits will fléay or service potential be provided to, the
PHA; where the cost of the asset can be measuliettlye All single items over £5,000 in
value must be capitalised while intangible asséthvfall within the grouped asset definition
must be capitalised if their individual value isla@ast £1,000 each and the group is at least
£5,000 in value.

The amount recognised for internally-generatednigitsle assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date of commencement of the gitde asset, until it is complete and ready
for use.
Intangible assets acquired separately are initrakipgnised at fair value.
Following initial recognition, intangible asset& ararried at fair value by reference to an active
market, and as no active market currently exispgaigated replacement cost has been used as
fair value.

1.8 Non-current assets held for sale
The PHA had no non-current assets held for sadéther 2014/15 or 2013/14.

1.9 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost andrealisable value. This is considered to be a
reasonable approximation to fair value due to tigh lurnover of stocks. The PHA had no
inventories in either 2014/15 or 2013/14.

1.10 Income
Operating Income relates directly to the operatatjvities of the PHA and is recognised
when, and to the extent that, performance occurd,is measured at the fair value of the
consideration receivable.
Grant in aid
Funds received from the Department of Health andiagb&ervices and Public Safety are
accounted for as grant in aid and are reflecteduthtr the Statement of Comprehensive Net
Expenditure Reserve.

1.11 Investments

The PHA did not hold any investments in either 2054r 2013/14.
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1.12

1.13

1.14

1.15

1.16

Other expenses

Other operating expenses for goods or servicesemaynised when, and to the extent that,
they have been received. They are measured &ithalue of the consideration payable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any finhintséitution repayable without penalty on
notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivaler@snvestments that mature in 3 months or
less from the date of acquisition and that areilgadnvertible to known amounts of cash
with insignificant risk of change in value.

Leases

PHA as lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases when stibBta all the risks and rewards of
ownership are transferred to the lessee. All deeses are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as ansxpana straight-line basis over the lease

term. Lease incentives are recognised initiallya déigbility and subsequently as a reduction of

rentals on a straight-line basis over the leasa.ter

Contingent rentals are recognised as an experibe jeriod in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land building components are separated.
Leased land may be either an operating lease oramée lease depending on the conditions in

the lease agreement and following the general go&aet out in IAS 17. Leased buildings

are assessed as to whether they are operatingaoicé leases.

The PHA did not hold any Finance Leases or actlassaor in either 2014/15 or 2013/14.
Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions

The PHA had no PFI transactions in either 2014(1304.3/14.

Financial instruments

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised on the Statemdfinahcial Position (SoFP) when the PHA
becomes party to the financial instrument contoacin the case of trade receivables, when the
goods or services have been delivered. Finansgdts are derecognised when the contractual

rights have expired or the asset has been traadfefinancial assets are initially recognised at
fair value.
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1.17

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the SoFPemvithe PHA becomes party to the

contractual provisions of the financial instrument in the case of trade payables, when the
goods or services have been received. Finanalalities are derecognised when the liability

has been discharged, that is, the liability haslmsed or has expired. Financial liabilities are

initially recognised at fair value.

Financial risk management

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that finahsistruments have had during the period in
creating or changing the risks a body faces in ualleg its activities. Because of the
relationships with the DHSSPS, and the manner irctwit is funded, financial instruments
play a more limited role within HSC bodies in ciegtrisk than would apply to a non-public
sector body of similar size, therefore the PHA o¢ exposed to the degree of financial risk
faced by business entities. The PHA has limiteslgve to borrow or invest surplus funds and
financial assets and liabilities are generateddyytd day operational activities rather than being
held to change the risks facing the PHA in undéantakctivities. Therefore the PHA is exposed
to little credit, liquidity or market risk.

Currency risk

The PHA is principally a domestic organisation witle great majority of transactions, assets
and liabilities being in the UK and Sterling basethe PHA has no overseas operations. The
PHA therefore has low exposure to currency ratetdiations.

Interest rate Risk, Credit Risk and Liquidity

The PHA receives the majority of its income frone tAHSSPS and has limited powers to
borrow or invest and therefore has low exposureréalit or liquidity risks or interest rate
fluctuations.

Provisions

In accordance with IAS 37, Provisions are recoghisten the PHA has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past eviémg probable that the PHA will be required

to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate be made of the amount of the obligation.
The amount recognised as a provision is the béistae of the expenditure required to settle
the obligation at the end of the reporting periadtjng into account the risks and uncertainties.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flesisnated to settle the obligation, its

carrying amount is the present value of those dlsts using Department of Finance and
Personnel’s discount rate of -1.5% (1-5 years))5% (>5-10 years) or 2.2% (>10 years) in
real terms.

The PHA has also disclosed the carrying amounhatheginning and end of the period,
additional provisions made, amounts used duringptiteod, unused amounts reversed during
the period and increases in the discounted amaisih@ from the passage of time and the
effect of any change in the discount rate.
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1.18

1.19

When some or all of the economic benefits requitedettle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable iogeised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursements will be received and amount of éeeivable can be measured reliably.

Present obligations arising under onerous contietsecognised and measured as a provision.
An onerous contract is considered to exist wheee RHA has a contract under which the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations urtdercontract exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received under it.

A restructuring provision is recognised when theAHtds developed a detailed formal plan for
the restructuring and has raised a valid expectaticdhose affected that it will carry out the
restructuring by starting to implement the plarapnouncing its main features to those affected
by it. The measurement of a restructuring prowisiocludes only the direct expenditures
arising from the restructuring, which are those ants that are both necessarily entailed by the
restructuring and not associated with on-goingvés of the PHA.

Contingencies

Under IAS 37 the PHA discloses contingent liabilities whereréhis a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence witbbérmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future eveotsvholly within the control of the PHA, or
a present obligation that is not recognised bec#uisenot probable that a payment will be
required to settle the obligation or the amourthefobligation cannot be measured sufficiently
reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed uskethe possibility of a payment is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that afises past events and whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence & on more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the PHA. A contingemisset is disclosed where an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Where the time value of money is material, contimgges are disclosed at their present value.
The PHA had no contingencies at 31 March 2015 8d.a/larch 2014.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Under the requirements of IAS 19: Employee Beneftaff costs must be recorded as an
expense as soon as the organisation is obligatpdydhem. This includes the cost of any
untaken leave that has been earned at the year Enid. cost has been has been calculated
based on the balance remaining in the computelésea system for all staff as at 31 March
2015. Untaken flexi leave is estimated to be immatéo the PHA and has not been included.
Retirement benefit costs

The PHA patrticipates in the HSC Superannuation r@eheUnder this multi-employer defined
benefit scheme both the PHA and employees payf@gkepercentages of pay into the scheme
and the liability to pay benefit falls to the DHSSPThe PHA is unable to identify its share of the
underlying assets and liabilities in the schemeaononsistent and reliable basis. Further
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1.20

1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

information regarding the HSC Superannuation Scheanebe found in the HSC Superannuation
Scheme Statement in the Departmental Resource Acfmuthe Department of Health, Social
Services and Public Safety.

The costs of early retrements are met by the PHW aharged to the Statement of
Comprehensive Net Expenditure at the time the PéfAnits itself to the retirement.

As per the requirements of IAS 19, full actuarialuations by a professionally qualified
actuary are required at intervals not exceeding years. The actuary reviews the most recent
actuarial valuation at the Statement of Financ@diffon date and updates it to reflect current
conditions. The 2012 valuation for the HSC Pensidmeme will be used in 2014/15 accounts.
Reserves

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure Reserve

Accumulated surpluses are accounted for in thee@ant of Comprehensive Net Expenditure
Reserve.

Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve reflects the unrealisecnibal of cumulative indexation and
revaluation adjustments to assets.

Value Added Tax

Where output VAT is charged or input VAT is recaaale, the amounts are stated net of VAT.
Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant exjteme category or included in the capitalised
purchase cost of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Third Party Assets

Assets belonging to third parties are not recoghisethe accounts since the PHA has no
beneficial interest in them. The PHA currentlydsho third parties assets.

Government Grants

The PHA had no Government Grants in either periodirgg 31 March 2015 or 31 March
2014.

Losses and Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Assentdalld not have contemplated when it
agreed funds for the health service or passedld¢igis. By their nature they are items that
ideally should not arise. They are therefore sttbfje special control procedures compared
with the generality of payments. They are dividet different categories, which govern the
way that individual cases are handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to then¢linctional headings in expenditure on
an accruals basis, including losses which wouldeHseen made good through insurance cover
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1.25

had the PHA not been bearing their own risks (witurance premiums then being included as
normal revenue expenditure). However, the notéoeses and special payments is compiled
directly from the losses and compensations regigiech reports amounts on an accruals basis
with the exception of provisions for future losses.

Accounting Standards that have been issued boave not yet been adopted

Under IAS 8 there is a requirement to disclosedhsiandards issued but not yet adopted. The
suggested wording is as follows;

The IASB have issued new and amended standard$ (IBRIFRS 11 & IFRS 12) that affect
the consolidation and reporting of subsidiariespamtes and joint ventures. These standards
have an effective date of'lanuary 2013, and EU adoption is due from 1 JgnR@i4.

Accounting boundary IFRS' are currently adaptedthe FReM so that the Westminster
departmental accounting boundary is based on Offic&lational Statistics (ONS) control
criteria, as designated by Treasury. A review @& Ml financial process is currently under
discussion with the Executive, which will bring Mepartments under the same adaptation.
Should this go ahead, the impact on DHSSPS aniiss length bodies is expected to focus
around the disclosure requirements under IFRS istl@sure of Interests in other entities’.

The impact on the consolidation boundary of Non &@&pental Public Bodies (NDPB'’s) and
trading funds will be subject to review, in parteny where control could be determined to
exist due to exposure to variable returns (IFRS, Hd)Jd where joint arrangements need
reassessing

Management consider that any other new accountihigigs issued but not yet adopted are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the acdsun the period of the initial application.

1.26 Changes in Accounting Policy/Prior Year Reatement

There were no changes in Accounting Policy dutirgyear ending 31March 2015.
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NOTE 2. ANALYSIS of NET EXPENDITURE by SEGMENT

The PHA has identified 3 segments: Commissioniagnify Health Services (FHS) and Administration. Net
expenditure is reported by segment as detailedwbelo

Summary

Net Expenditure
Commissioning

FHS

Agency Administration

Total Commissioner Resources Utilise

2.1 Commissioning

Expenditure

HSC Trust

Belfast HSC Trust

South Eastern HSC Trust
Southern HSC Trust
Northern HSC Trust
Western HSC Trust
NIMDTA

Other Providers

Income
Income from activities

Commissioning Net Expenditure
2.2 FHS

Expenditure
Family Health Services Expenditure

Income

FHS Net Expenditure

Note 2015 2014
£'000s £'000s
2.1 79,063 73,091
2.2 2,103 2,075
2.3 19,429 19,144
100,59! 94,31(
SoCNE 11,924 11,375
SoCNE 3,539 3,247
SoCNE 5,458 4,950
SoCNE 7,302 6,490
SoCNE 6,131 5,793
SoCNE 133 0
4.1/4.2 45,053 41,389
79,540 73,244
5.1 477 153
79,06: 73,09:
4.1 2,103 2,075
5.1 0 0
2,10z 2,07¢
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2.3 Agency administration

Note 201t 2014

Expenditure £'000s £'000s
Salaries & wages 3.1 17,186 17,022
Operating expenditure 4.2 2,759 2,816
Non Cash costs 4.3 16 26

Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment 4.3 1
Depreciation & Amortisation 4.3 148 100
20,110 19,965

Income

Staff secondment recoveries 3.1 288 478
Operating income 5.2 393 343
681 821

Administration Net Expenditure 19,42¢ 19,14«
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NOTE 3. STAFF NUMBERS AND RELATED COSTS

3.1 Staff Costs

2015 2014
Permanently
Staff costs comprise: employed staff Others Total Total
£000s £000s £000s £000s

Wages and salaries 13,483 720 14,203 14,052
Social security costs 1,233 66 1,299 1,309
Other pension costs 1,599 85 1,684 1,661
Sub-Total 16,315 871 17,186 17,022
Capitalised staff costs 0 0 0 0
Total staff costs reported in Statement of
Comprehensive Expenditure 16,315 871 17,186 17,022
Less recoveries in respect of outward
secondments 288 478
Total net costs 16,898 16,544

Staff Costs exclude £Nil charged to capital prgetiring the year (2014 £Nil)

The PHA participates in the HSC Superannuation ®eheUnder this multi-employer defined benefit sobeoth the
PHA and employees pay specified percentages oinpayhe scheme and the liability to pay benefisfto the
DHSSPS. The PHA is unable to identify its sharthefunderlying assets and liabilities in the sol@m a consistent
and reliable basis.

3.2 Average number of persons employed

The average number of whole time equivalent persamsoyed during the year was as follows:

2015 2014
Permanently
employed staff Others Total Total

No. No. No. No.
Commissioning of Health and Social Care 319 22 341 331
Less average staff number in respect of outward
secondments 3 0 3 7
Total net average number of persons
employed 316 22 338 324
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NOTE 3.3 STAFF NUMBERS AND RELATED COSTS

3.3

Senior Employees' Remuneration

PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY

The salary, pension entitlements and the valueptaxable benefits in kind of the most senior meralof the PHA were as follov

2014/15 2013/14 2014/15
Benefits in Real increase| Total accrued Real
Kind Pension in pension and|pension at age 6 increase/
(Rounded |Benefits (tq Benefits in Kind Pension related lump |and related lump|CETV at| CETV at | (decrease) ir

Salary | to nearest| nearest | Total Salary (Rounded to Benefits (to Total sum at age 60 sum 31/03/14| 31/03/15 CETV
Name £000s £100) £1000) | £'000 £000s | nearest £100) | nearest £1000) £'000 £000s £000s £000s | £000s £000s
Non-Executive Members
M McMahon (left 30 November 2014) 20-25 200 - 20-25 30-35 0 - 30-3§ - - - - -
J Erskine (Interim Chair from
1 December 2014) 15-20 100 - 15-20 5-10 0 - 5-10 - - - - -
J Harbison 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10 - - - - -
M Karp 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10 - - - - -
T Mahaffy 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10 - - - - -
P Porter 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10 - - - - -
W Ashe 5-10 0 - 5-10 5-10 0 - 5-10 - - - - -
B Coulter 5-10 0 : 5-10 5-10 0 : 5-10 : : - : -
Executive Members
E P Rooney 115-12p 700 22,000 140-145 115-120 0 21,000 146%- 0-2.5 pension 10-15 pension 144 178 30

2.5 pension 35-40 pension
C Harper 1) 145-150 0 33,000 | 175-18) 140-14§ 100 30,000 170-1 7§16 Iupm sum 110-115 lump | 622 684 42
P sum
E McClean 80-85| 300 29,000| 110-115 758 100 13,000 90jgf;2:> pension| 10-15 pension | - 5, 533 40
-10 lump sum 70-75 lump sum
. . . . 35-40 pension

P Cu_llen (Appointed Acting Director of 85-90 0 ) 85-90 65-70 100 ) 65-70 5-10 pension 110-115 lump | 556 668 93
Nursing 1 June 2013) 2) 15-20 lump sum sum

As Non-Executive members do not receive pensionabfeineration, there will be no entries in respégtensions for Non-Executive members.

(1) The CETV has been re-calculated by PensionsdBréor 31/03/14 from 717 to 622 due to a non-saipeuable allowance being included.

(2) This is a temporary acting up post which staiteJune 2013. Therefore the annual calculatigmeofsion benefit is not applicable.
The value of pension benefits accrued during tlae igecalculated as the real increase in pensidtiptied by 20, plus the real increase in any lusamn, less the contributions made by the individual.

The real increases include increases due to ioflair any increase or decreases due to a trarfgfension rights.
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NOTE 3. STAFF NUMBERS AND RELATED COSTS

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is the actuariadisessed capital value of the pension scheme tseaetrued
by a member at a particular point in time. The bengéitsed are the member's accrued benefits and anygentispouse's
pension payable from the scheme. A CETV is a paymeawlie by a pension scheme, or arrangement to secuierpens
benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement \Wwhenémber leaves a scheme and chooses to transfemifigd
accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shelate to the benefits that the individual has accased
consequence of their total membership of the penstoense, not just their service in a senior capacityhiwhvthe
disclosure applies. The CETYV figures and the otheriperietails, include the value of any pension besdfianother
scheme or arrangement which the individual has transfeyrbd HPSS pension scheme. They also includedaigional
pension benefit accrued to the member as a resultiopilnehasing additional years of pension service irstieme at
their own cost.

CETVs are calculated within the guidelines prescritpethe Institute and Faculty of Actuaries.

Real Increase in CETV - This reflects the increase im\CE&ffectively funded by the employer. It takes accafrthe
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, coniobatpaid by the employee (Including the value of laeyefits
transferred from another pension scheme or arrangement) @ndammon market valuation factors for the start andénd
the period.

3.4 Reporting of early retirement and other compensatio scheme - exit packages
The PHA had no early retirements or other compensatibpackages agreed in 2014/15 or 2013/14.

3.5 Staff Benefits
The PHA had no staff benefits in 2014/15 or 2013/14.
3.6 Retirements Due To lll-Health

During 2014/15 there were no early retirements from the Bgt&ed on the grounds of ill-health, (2013/14 nil)
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NOTE 4. OPERATING EXPENSES

4.1 Commissioning

General Medical Services/FHS
Other providers of healthcare and personal soer@ices
Total Commissioning

4.2 Operating Expenses are as follows:
Supplies and services - General
Establishment

Transport

Premises

Rentals under operating leases
Research & development expenditure
Total Operating Expenses

4.3 Non cash items

Depreciation

Amortisation
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipmentl(iding

land)

Provisions provided for in year
Auditors remuneration

Total non cash items

Total

During the year the PHA paid its share of regianalit services (£1,232) from its external auditdiyO)

201¢ 201«
£000s £000s

2,103 2,075
36,259 35,001
38,362 37,076
103 107
1,729 1,813

3 11

770 756
154 129
8,794 6,388
11,553 9,204
131 97

17 3

1 2

0 5

16 21
165 128
50,080 46,408

for the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) and is inded in operating costs above.
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NOTE 5. INCOME

5.1 Income from Activities

201¢ 201¢
£000s £000s
Research & Development 477 153
Total 477 153
5.2 Other Operating Income
201¢ 2014
£000: £000:
Other income 393 343
Seconded staff 288 478
Total 681 821
5.3 Deferred income 2015 2014
£000: £000:
Total 0 0
TOTAL INCOME 1,158 974
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NOTE 6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTE 6.1 Property, plant & equipment - year ended 2 March 2015

Information Technology Furniture and
(IT) Fittings Total
£0005 £000s £000s

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2014 634 106 740
Indexation 0 0 0
Additions 49 0 49
Reclassifications 0 0 0
Transfers 0 0 0
Disposals (33) (4 (37
At 31 March 2015 650 102 752
Depreciation
At 1 April 2014 241 39 280
Disposals (32) (4 (36
Provided during the year 123 8 131
At 31 March 2015 332 43 375
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2015 318 59 377
At 31 March 2014 393 67 460
Asset financing
Owned 318 59 377
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2015 318 59 377

The total amount of depreciation charged in théeBtant of Comprehensive Net Expenditure Account
in respect of assets held under finance leasebiamg@urchase contracts is £Nil (2014 £Nil).

The fair value of assets funded from donationsggawent grants and lottery was £Nil (2014 £Nil).
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NOTE 6.2 Property, plant & equipment - year ended 2 March 2014

Information Technology Furniture and
(IT) Fittings Total

£0004 £000s £00
Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2013 470 104 574
Indexation 0 2 2
Additions 193 0 193
Transfers (13) 0 (13
Disposals (16) 0 (16
At 31 March 2014 634 106 740
Depreciation
At 1 April 2013 167 30 197
Disposals (14) 0 (14
Provided during the year 88 9 97
At 31 March 2014 241 39 280
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2014 393 67 460
At 1 April 2013 303 74 377
Asset financing
Owned 393 67 460
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2014 393 67 460
Asset financing
Owned 303 74 377
Carrying Amount
At 1 April 2013 303 74 377

The fair value of assets funded from donationsggawient grants or lottery was £Nil.
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NOTE 7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
NOTE 7.1 Intangible assets - year ended 31 Marct025

Information

Software Licenses Technology Total
Cost or Valuation £0004 £000s £00
At 1 April 2014 14 48 62
Additions 0 99 99
Reclassifications 48 (48 0
Transfers 0 0 0
At 31 March 2015 62 99 161
Amortisation
At 1 April 2014 2 0 2
Provided during the year 13 5 18
At 31 March 2015 15 5 2C
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2015 47 94 141
At 31 March 2014 12 48 6C
Asset Financing
Owned a7 94 141
Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2015 47 94 141

Any fall in value through negative indexation ovaiation is shown as an impairment
The fair value of assets funded from donationsegoment grants and lottery was £Nil (2014 £Nil)
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NOTE 7.2 Intangible assets - year ended 31 March 24

Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2013
Additions
Reclassifications
Transfers

At 31 March 2014

Amortisation
At 1 April 2013
Provided during the year

At 31 March 2014

Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2014

At 1 April 2013

Asset Financing
Owned

Carrying Amount
At 31 March 2014

Asset Financing
Owned

Carrying Amount
At 1 April 2013

PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY

Information
Software License$ Technology Total
£0009 £000s £000s

1 0 1

0 48 48

0 0 0

13 0 13
14 48 62

0 0 0

2 0 2

2 0 2

12 48 60

1 0 1

12 48 60
12 48 60

1 0 1

1 0 1

The fair value of assets funded from donationseguwent grants or lottery was £nil.
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NOTE 8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

8.1 Financial Instruments

Due to the relationships with HSC Commissioners,itfanner in which they are funded, financial insteats pla

a more limited role within Agencies in creating risk than Wwbapply to a non public sector body of a similar size,

therefore Agencies are not exposed to the degree of finamskafaced by business entities. The PHA has limited

powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and financial asaed liabilities are generated by day to day operational
activities rather than being held to change the risks fatieg°PHA in undertaking activities. Therefore the PHA is

exposed to little credit, liquidity or market risk.

NOTE 9. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Non current assets held for sale comprise of non currentsaisa# are held for resale rather than for continuing
use within the business.

The PHA did not hold any assets classified as fugldale in 2014/15 or 2013/14.

NOTE 10. IMPAIRMENTS

The PHA had no impairments in 2014/15 or 2013/14.

NOTE 11. INVENTORIES

The PHA did not hold any inventories at 31 Marci2@r 31 March 2014.
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NOTE 12.1 TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts falling due within one year
Trade receivables

Deposits and advances

VAT receivable

Other receivables

Trade and other receivables

Prepayments and accrued income

Other current assets

Intangible current assets

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Trade and other receivables

Other current assets falling due after more than oa year

TOTAL TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

201t 201¢
£000s £000s
302 234
0 0
318 221
192 243
812 698
150 388
150 388
0 0
0 0
0 0
812 698
150 388
962 1,086

The balances are net of a provision for bad deffdNd (2014 £Nil)
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NOTE 12. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

12.2 Trade receivables and other current assetstra-Government balances

Amounts falling due Amounts falling due

within 1 year within 1 year

2014/15 2013/14

£000s £000s
Balances with other central government bodies 434 345
Balances with local authorities 24 0
Balances with NHS /HSC Trusts 111 257
Intra-government balances 569 602
Balances with bodies external to government 393 484
Total receivables and other current assets at 31 Meh 962 1,086
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NOTE 13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

201t 201¢
£000s £000s
Balance at 1st April 217 269
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 59 (52)
Balance at 31st March 276 217
The following balances at 31 March were held 201t 201«
£000s £000s
Commercial banks and cash in hand 276 217
Balance at 31st March 276 217
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NOTE 14. TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITI ES

14.1 Trade Payables and other current liabilitie

Amounts falling due within one year

Other taxation and social security

Trade capital payables - property, plant and egaigm
Trade capital payables - intangibles

Trade revenue payables

Payroll payables

BSO payables

Other payables

Accruals and deferred income

Trade and other payables

Other current liabilities

Intangible current assets

Total payables falling due within one year

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Total non current other payables

TOTAL TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT
LIABILITIES

201¢ 201«
£000: £000:
389 367

5 239

23 0
5,208 4,545
250 495
624 363
477 1,019
38 2,449
7,014 9,476

0 0

0 0
7,014 9,476

0 0

0 0
7,014 9,476

95



PUBLIC HEALTH AGENCY

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015
NOTE 14. TRADE PAYABLES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITI ES

14.2 Trade payables and other current liabilities intra-government balances

Amounts Amounts

falling due falling due

within 1 year within 1 year

2014/15 2013/14

Name £000:¢ £000:¢
Balances with other central government bodies 565 3,179
Balances with local authorities 221 133
Balances with NHS /HSC Trusts 2,552 2,370
Balances with public corporations and trading funds 9 1
Intra-government balances 3,347 5,683
Balances with bodies external to government 3,667 3,793
Total payables and other liabilities at 31 March 7,014 9,476
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NOTE 15. PROMPT PAYMENT POLICY

15.1 Public Sector Payment Policy - Measure of Cgstiance

The Department requires that the PHA pays theirti8@ trade creditors in accordance with the Bé&tsments

Practice Code and Government Accounting Rules.PIH&'s payment policy is consistent with the BeRayments
Practice Code and Government Accounting rules @nehéasure of compliance is:

201¢ 201¢ 201¢ 201¢
Number Value Number  Value
£000s £000s
Total bills paid 9,024 34,624 8,289 31,724
Total bills paid within 30 day target or under agtgpayment terms 8,024 32,372 7,392 27,735

% of bills paid within 30 day target or under agt@ayment terms*  88.92% 93.50% 89.18% 87.43%

Total bills paid within 10 day target or under agig@ayment terms 6,866 23,542 6,103 22,008

% of bills paid within 10 day target under agreegment terms 76.09% 67.99% 73.63% 69.37%

15.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts Regulatis 2002
The PHA did not pay any compensation or interespfiyments made late in 2014/15 (2013/14 £Nil).

* New late payment legislatiofLate Payment of Commercial Debts Regulations 2@&8)e into force on 16 March

2013. The effect of the new legislation is th@iagment is normally regarded as late unless itaderwithin 30 days
after receipt of an undisputed invoice.
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NOTE 16. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES - 2 01¢

Other 2015

£000s £000s
Balance at 1 April 201 10 1C
Provided in ye: 0 0
(Provisions not required written bac 0 0
(Provisions utilised in the ye: 0 0
Cost of borrowing (unwinding of discou 0 0
At 31 March 2015 10 10

Provisions have been made for 1 type of poteni#hllity - Employer's Liability. The PHA has esiated an

appropriate level of provision based on profesditagal advice.

201t 201¢
Comprehensive Net Expenditure Account charge
£000:¢ £000:
Arising during the year 0 5
Reversed unused 0 0
Cost of borrowing (unwinding of discount) 0 0
Total charge within Operating expenses 0 5
Analysis of expected timing of discounted flows Other 2015
£000:¢ £000:
Not later than one ye 10 1C
At 31 March 2015 10 10
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NOTE 16. PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES -2 014

Other 2014

£000s £000s
Balance at 1 April 2013 5 5
Transfer between provisions 0 0
Provided in year 5 5
(Provisions not required written back) 0 0
(Provisions utilised in the year) 0 0
Cost of borrowing (unwinding of discount) 0 0
At 31 March 201<4 1C 10

Provisions have been made for 1 type of potenéhllity - Employer's Liability. The PHA has asiate

an appropriate level of provision based on protessdilegal advice.

Analysis of expected timing of discounted flows

Other 201¢

£000s £000s
Not later than one year 10 10
Later than one year and not later than five years 0 0
Later than five years 0 0
At 31 March 201< 1C 10
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NOTE 17. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The PHA did not have any capital commitments aiMatch 2015 or 31 March 2014.

NOTE 18. COMMITMENTS UNDER LEASES
18.1 Operating Leases

Total future minimum lease payments under operdéages are given in the table below for eachef th
following periods.

201¢ 201¢
Buildings £000s £000s
Not later than 1 year 129 129
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 273 278
Later than 5 years 0 0

402 407

18.2 Finance Leases
The PHA had no finance leases in 2014/15 or 2013/14

18.3 Operating Leases

The PHA had no lessor obligations in either 2014/1.3013/14.

NOTE 19. COMMITMENTS UNDER PFI AND OTHER SERVICE CO NCESSION ARRANGEMENT
CONTRACTS

The PHA had no commitments under PFI or serviceession arrangements in either 2014/15 or 2013/14.

NOTE 20. OTHER FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

The PHA did not have any other financial commitrseatteither 31 March 2015 or 31 March 2014.
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NOTE 21. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES, INDEMNITIES AND LETT ERS OF COMFORT

Because of the relationships with HSC Commissioners, aedntAnner in which the PHA is funded, financial
instruments play a more limited role within the PHA in cregtrisk than would apply to a non public sector body of a
similar size, therefore the PHA is not exposed to the degfdmancial risk faced by business entities. The PHA has
limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and finah@issets and liabilities are generated by day to day
operational activities rather than being held to changeitiies facing the PHA in undertaking activities. Therefdne t
PHA is exposed to little credit, liquidity or mathkesk.

The PHA did not have any financial instrumentsititez 31 March 2015 or 31 March 2014.

NOTE 22. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The PHA had no contingent liabilities as at 31 N&2015 or 31 March 2014.

NOTE 23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The PHA is an arms length body of the Departmemexlth, Social Services and Public Safety andueb the
Department is a related Party with which the PHA lhad various material transactions during the.year

Dr Jeremy Harbison (PHA Non-Executive DirectorPi®-Chancellor of Ulster University, which may ldeely to do
business with the HSC in future.

During the year, none of the board members, members of them@magement staff or other related parties has
undertaken any material transactions with the PHA.

NOTE 24. THIRD PARTY ASSETS

The PHA held £nil cash at bank and in hand at 3&cMa015 relating to third parties.
NOTE 25. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE TARGETS

25.1 Revenue Resource Limit

The PHA is given a Revenue Resource Limit which it not permitted to overspend

The Revenue Resource Limit (RRL) for PHA is caltedbas follows: 2015 2014
Total Total
£000s £000s

DHSSPS (excludes non cash) 100,573 94,341

Non cash RRL (from DHSSPS) 165 128

Total Revenue Resource Limit to Statement

Comprehensive Net Expenditure 100,738 94,469
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25.2 Capital Resource Limit

The PHA is given a Capital Resource Limit (CRL) @it is not permitted to overspend.

2015 2014

Total Total

£000s £000s
Gross capital expenditure 148 241
Net capital expenditure 148 241
Capital Resource Limit 147 245
Overspend/(Underspend) against CRL 1 (4)

25.3 Financial Performance Targets

The PHA is required to ensure that it breaks evearoannual basis by containing its net expendtre
within 0.25% of RRL limits.

2014/15 2013/14

£000s £000s

Net Expenditure (100,595) (94,311)

RRL 100,738 94,469
Surplus / (Deficit) against RRL 143 158
Break Even cumulative position(opening) 880 722
Break Even cumulative position (closil 1,02¢ 88C

Materiality Test:

2015 2014
% %

Break Even in year position as % of RRL 0.14% 0.17%

Break Even cumulative position as % of RRL 1.02% 0.93%

The PHA has met its requirements to contain NebReg Outturn to within + /- 0.25% of its agreed
Revenue Resource Limit (RRL), as per DHSSPS Cirdd&C (F) 21/2012.
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NOTE 26. LOSSES & SPECIAL PAYMENTS

2014/15 2013/1:
Type of loss and special payment Number of
Cases £
Fruitless payments
Late Payment of Commercial Debt 0
Claims waived or abandoned b5
1 55 40
Losses of Accountable Stores
Losses of Accountable Stores 73
1 73 0
TOTAL 2 128 40

26.1 Special Payments

There were no other special payments or gifts ndadieg the year.
26.2 Other Payments

There were no other payments made during the year.

26.3 Losses and Special Payments over £250,000

There were no losses or special payments greaeri?50k during the year.

NOTE 27. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There are no post balance sheet events havingegiah&tffect on the accounts.

NOTE 28. DATE AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE

The Accounting Officer authorised these financiatements for issue on 01 July 2015 for final efigear accounts.
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